
Page 1 of 3 

 

                      

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AGENDA 
JANUARY 26, 2021 

110 EAST MAIN STREET 
LOS GATOS, CA 

                               Marico Sayoc, Mayor  
Rob Rennie, Vice Mayor  

Mary Badame, Council Member  
Matthew Hudes, Council Member 

Maria Ristow, Council Member 

 

 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC PROCESS 

How to participate:  The Town of Los Gatos strongly encourages your active participation in the 
public process, which is the cornerstone of democracy. If you wish to speak to an item on the 
agenda, please follow the Participation Instructions on page 2 of this agenda. If you wish to speak 
to an item NOT on the agenda, you may do so during the “Verbal Communications” period. The 
time allocated to speakers may change to better facilitate the Town Council meeting. 
 
Effective Proceedings:  The purpose of the Town Council meeting is to conduct the business of 
the community in an effective and efficient manner. For the benefit of the community, the Town 
of Los Gatos asks that you follow the Town’s meeting guidelines while attending Town Council 
meetings and treat everyone with respect and dignity. This is done by following meeting 
guidelines set forth in State law and in the Town Code. Disruptive conduct is not tolerated, 
including but not limited to: addressing the Town Council without first being recognized; 
interrupting speakers, Town Council or Town staff; continuing to speak after the allotted time 
has expired; failing to relinquish the podium when directed to do so; and repetitiously addressing 
the same subject. 
 
Deadlines for Public Comment and Presentations are as follows: 

 Persons wishing to make an audio/visual presentation on any agenda item must submit the 
presentation electronically, either in person or via email, to the Clerk’s Office no later than 
3:00 p.m. on the day of the Council meeting. 

 Persons wishing to submit written comments to be included in the materials provided to 
Town Council must provide the comments as follows: 
o For inclusion in the regular packet: by 11:00 a.m. the Thursday before the Council 

meeting 
o For inclusion in any Addendum: by 11:00 a.m. the Monday before the Council meeting 
o For inclusion in any Desk Item: by 11:00 a.m. on the day of the Council Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Town Council Meetings Broadcast Live on KCAT, Channel 15 (on Comcast) on the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays at 7:00 p.m. 

Rebroadcast of Town Council Meetings on the 2nd and 4th Mondays at 7:00 p.m. 
Live & Archived Council Meetings can be viewed by going to: 

www.LosGatosCA.gov/TownYouTube 
 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, 

PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK DEPARTMENT AT (408) 354-6834.  NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE TOWN 

TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING [28 CFR §35.102-35.104] 

Page 1

http://www.losgatosca.gov/TownYouTube


Page 2 of 3 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AGENDA 

JANUARY 26, 2021 

7:00 PM 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE JANUARY 26, 2021 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

This meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means consistent with 
State of California Executive Order N-29- 20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID- 19 
pandemic. The live stream of the meeting may be viewed on television and/or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/AgendasAndVideos. In accordance with Executive Order N-29- 20, the 
public may only view the meeting on television and/or online and not in the Council 
Chamber. 

PARTICIPATION 

If you are not interested in providing oral comments in real-time during the meeting, you can 
view the live stream of the meeting on television (Comcast Channel 15) and/or online at 
www.LosGatosCA.gov/TownYouTube. 
 
If you are interested in providing oral comments real-time during the meeting, you must join 
the Zoom webinar: 

 Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device: click this link 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83535252379?pwd=eFZjUVozdEdleEdFczRKb1FRK0k1UT09.  

Password: 191144.  You can also type in 835 3525 2379 in the “Join a Meeting” page on 

the Zoom website at https://zoom.us/join. 

 Join by telephone: Dial: USA 877 336 1839 US Toll-free. Conference code: 969184 
 
During the meeting: 

 When the Chair announces the item for which you wish to speak, click the “raise hand” 
feature in Zoom.  If you are participating by phone on the Zoom app, press *9 on your 
telephone keypad to raise your hand.  If you are participating by calling in, press #2 on 
your telephone keypad to raise your hand. 

 When called to speak, please limit your comments to three (3) minutes, or such other 
time as the Chair may decide, consistent with the time limit for speakers at a Council 
meeting. 

If you are unable to participate in real-time, you may email to PublicComment@losgatosca.gov 
the subject line “Public Comment Item #__ ” (insert the item number relevant to your 
comment) or “Verbal Communications – Non Agenda Item.” Comments will be reviewed and 
distributed before the meeting if received by 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  All 
comments received will become part of the record. The Mayor has the option to modify this 
action on items based on comments received. 

 

Page 2

http://www.losgatosca.gov/AgendasAndVideos
http://www.losgatosca.gov/TownYouTube
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83535252379?pwd=eFZjUVozdEdleEdFczRKb1FRK0k1UT09
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:PublicComment@losgatosca.gov


Page 3 of 3 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AGENDA 

JANUARY 26, 2021 

7:00 PM 
 

REMOTE LOCATION PARTICIPANTS 
The following Council Members are listed to permit them to appear electronically or 
telephonically at the Town Council meeting: MAYOR MARICO SAYOC, VICE MAYOR ROB RENNIE, 
COUNCIL MEMBER MARY BADAME, COUNCIL MEMBER MATTHEW HUDES, and COUNCIL 
MEMBER MARIA RISTOW. All votes during the teleconferencing session will be conducted by roll 
call vote. 

MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS (Members of the public are welcome to address the Town Council 
on any matter listed on the agenda consistent with the Participation Instructions contained on 
Page 2 of this agenda 

OTHER BUSINESS (Up to three minutes may be allotted for each comment on any of the following 
items consistent with the Participation Instructions contained on page 2 of this agenda.) 

1. Approve the Following Strategic Priorities Actions: 
A. Affirm the Town Goals of Community Character, Good Governance, Fiscal Stability, 

Civic Enrichment, Public Safety, and Quality Public Infrastructure 
B. Affirm and/or Refine Ongoing Strategic Priorities for 2021-2023 
C. For any new Strategic Priority, identify an existing Priority that should be removed or 

de-emphasized; and 
D. Identify Ordinance Priorities 
 

ADJOURNMENT (Council policy is to adjourn no later than midnight unless a majority of Council 
votes for an extension of time.) 

Writings related to an item on the Town Council meeting agenda distributed to members of the Council within 
72 hours of the meeting are available for public inspection on the official Town of Los Gatos website.   

 

Note: The Town of Los Gatos has adopted the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6; litigation 
challenging a decision of the Town Council must be brought within 90 days after the decision is announced 
unless a shorter time is required by State or Federal law. 

 

Page 3



 

   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Finance Director 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 01/26/2021 

ITEM NO: 1 

 
   

 

DATE:   January 21, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve the Following Strategic Priorities Actions: 
A. Affirm the Town Goals of Community Character, Good Governance, Fiscal 

Stability, Civic Enrichment, Public Safety, and Quality Public Infrastructure 
B. Affirm and/or Refine Ongoing Strategic Priorities for 2021-2023 
C. For any new Strategic Priority, identify an existing Priority that should be 

removed or de-emphasized; and 
D. Identify Ordinance Priorities 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Approve the following Strategic Priorities Actions: 
A. Affirm the Town Goals of Community Character, Good Governance, Fiscal Stability, Civic 

Enrichment, Public Safety, and Quality Public Infrastructure; 
B. Affirm and/or refine ongoing Strategic Priorities for 2021-2023;  
C. For any new Strategic Priority, identify an existing Priority that should be removed or de-

emphasized; and  
D. Identify Ordinance priorities 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Every year, the Town Council considers its Strategic Priorities for the next two years.  In past 
years, Strategic Priorities consisted of specific policy efforts that could be completed within a 
relatively short time frame of a few months.  More recently, Strategic Priorities have evolved to 
address more complex issues facing the Town that may involve multifaceted approaches, such 
as addressing transportation and traffic (see Attachment 1, Existing Strategic Priorities).   
 
  

Page 4



PAGE 2 OF 5 
SUBJECT: Strategic Priorities 
DATE:  January 21, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND (Continued): 
 
The Council’s identification of Strategic Priorities is a critical step in the budget process for the 
fiscal year and ensures that Town resources are directed to these Priorities.  The Strategic 
Priorities session provides the Council and the community an opportunity to discuss areas of 
emphasis for the upcoming budget development.   
 
The goal of the session is to affirm and/or refine existing Priorities.  Given the Town’s ongoing 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic and work underway with existing Priorities, the Town 
organization has limited capacity to add new items on top of the existing ones.  In addition, the 
Town has limited financial capacity to add significant new items as Town revenues have been 
impacted by the pandemic as discussed with the Council in December 2020.  For these reasons, 
any new Strategic Priority should be paired with a reduction of effort or elimination of an 
existing Priority.   
 
This report discusses the Town’s core goals, existing Strategic Priorities, work plans for each 
Department, results of a community survey, status of existing Capital Improvement Projects, 
and a list of ordinances.  
 
DISCUSSION: 

Core Goals  
 
The Town provides a high level of quality municipal services to the Los Gatos community based 
on the Town’s adopted Operating and Capital Budgets.  The Budgets are an expression of the 
Town’s core goals of community character, good governance, fiscal stability, civic enrichment, 
public safety, and quality public infrastructure.  The Council should affirm these core goals. 
 
Staff Capacity and Department Work Plans  
 
The Town of Los Gatos provides the key local government services of Public Works, Parks, 
Library, Police, and Community Development with the necessary support services of 
Information Technology, Finance, Clerk, and Human Resources.  The Town Manager’s Office 
leads and guides these administrative duties and closely collaborates with the Town Attorney’s 
Office to support the work of the Town Council.  From the Council’s priority setting, the work of 
the Town Departments and Commissions is aligned to meet these Priorities. 
 
Attachment 2 contains the work plans of all Town Departments and Divisions.  As a service 
organization, each Department devotes approximately 90% of its staff time and other budget 
resources providing core services to the community.  The remaining 10% or so of Department 
resources are allocated to special projects, such as Strategic Priorities.  All of these services and 
projects are supported by the Town’s Operating Budget.  
 

Page 5



PAGE 3 OF 5 
SUBJECT: Strategic Priorities 
DATE:  January 21, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (Continued): 

Given that many Strategic Priorities are multi-year Ongoing Priorities, there is not much 
additional capacity within the Town organization to take on large, new items.  In addition, the 
Town Departments rapidly adapted to providing municipal services in new ways to ensure the 
health and safety of employees and the public during the COVID-19 pandemic.  With the 
Council’s leadership, staff is also implementing community vitality and economic recovery 
actions to assist businesses, residents, and non-profits during these challenging times.  
 
Existing Strategic Priorities and Draft 2021-2023 Strategic Priorities 
 
Attachment 1 depicts the Ongoing Priorities, including Traffic/Transportation, Quality of Life, 
Safety, and Prudent Financial Management.  There are important efforts underway in each 
category, including implementation of the comprehensive parking study as part of 
Traffic/Transportation Priority and Fire Protection as part of the Safety Priority.   
 
In addition, the Town is in progress with several significant efforts, including the General Plan 
Update and Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) Policy.  These two items should be completed in 
2021.  By State law, the Town will also need to start the Housing Element Update process to 
have a draft document ready for Council adoption prior to January 1, 2023. 
 
Attachment 3 contains the Draft 2021-2023 Strategic Priorities, continuing the Ongoing 
Priorities and acknowledging additional items in progress, such as the pandemic recovery, 
implementation of Police reforms, and the Town’s efforts toward becoming a more inclusive 
community.  For reference, this attachment also identifies recently completed items, such as 
the Ad Hoc Wildfire Plan.   
 
Community Survey 
 
The Town conducted an online community survey from December 1, 2020 through January 8, 
2021 to learn the community’s priorities.  The survey received 411 total responses.  Attachment 
4 contains the detailed survey results.  
 
With respect to priority ranking (Question 1), the results were: 

Economic Vitality: 7.06 
Fire Protection: 6.59 
Emergency Preparedness: 6.25 
Transportation Demand Management: 5.62 
Community Vitality: 5.12 
Land Use Planning: 4.94 
Comprehensive Parking Study: 4.47 
Address Pension & OPEB Obligations: 3.12 
Sell or Lease Certain Town Properties: 2.08 

Page 6



PAGE 4 OF 5 
SUBJECT: Strategic Priorities 
DATE:  January 21, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (Continued): 

Question 2 asked, “Would you like to see the Town shift the focus of its Strategic Priorities to 
new efforts?”  The “No” response was 50.56% and the “Yes” response was 49.44%.  Question 3 
asked, “Provide your top choices for new Town Strategic Priorities” and those responses are 
grouped into categories of alternative transportation/transportation management, arts, 
community vitality, economic vitality/business support, emergency preparedness, 
environment/sustainability, fire prevention, fiscal stability, housing/development, human 
services/homeless, inclusivity/racial justice, and miscellaneous. 
 
Capital Improvement Project Status 
 
Attachment 5 contains a matrix summarizing the budget for each capital project, source of 
funds, amount expended/encumbered to date, and status.  This information conveys the level 
of investment and commitment of particular projects, and the potential opportunity for 
reallocation to other Town priorities or future capital needs. 
 
Suggestions from a Council Member 
 
Attachment 6 contains two suggestions from Council Member Hudes.  One pertains to post-
COVID economic recovery and revival, and the other to serving our 60+ year old community 
members.  These materials were submitted in advance for consideration. 
 
List of Ordinances 
 
A burgeoning aspect of municipal governance is the proliferation of state mandated laws which 
require local ordinance development.  In addition, the Town’s proactive efforts to evolve the 
existing business and land use regulatory environment has yielded considerable ordinance 
modification and development.  It is anticipated that the coming year will continue the trend of 
state mandated and/or locally driven ordinances.  
 
In coordination with all Town Departments, the Town Attorney has provided a list of potential 
ordinances to amend the Town Code in Attachment 7.  This list is in priority order based on 
work already in progress, State laws, service delivery, and emerging conditions.  The Council 
may wish to adjust the priorities for this work.   
 
Priority Setting Process 
 
After review of the materials and consideration of public testimony, the Council may take the 
following steps to set priorities: 

1. Affirm the Core Goals; 
2. Affirm and/or refine the current Strategic Priorities;  

 

Page 7



PAGE 5 OF 5 
SUBJECT: Strategic Priorities 
DATE:  January 21, 2021 
 
DISCUSSION (Continued): 

3. Consider new Priorities and determine which existing Priorities should be eliminated or 
de-emphasized; and  

4. Determine the priority order of potential ordinances. 
 
CONCLUSION AND NEXT STEPS: 
 
The completion of the Strategic Priorities aligns the work of the Town Departments, Boards, 
Commissions, and Committees.  The Council’s affirmation of existing Priorities and any 
refinements guide the preparation of the 2021/22 Operating and Capital Budgets for Council 
consideration in May. 
 
On February 16, the Town Council is scheduled to discuss the Five-Year Financial Forecast and 
the sensitivity of the Forecast to changes in key revenue and expenditure assumptions (i.e., 
alternative scenarios).  As part of its consideration, the Council should have comments and/or 
recommendations from the newly appointed Finance Commission which is meeting on 
February 8th to consider the Forecast and associated analyses. 
 
COORDINATION: 

The preparation of this report was completed in coordination with all Town Departments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

The work of this session informs the preparation of the upcoming Fiscal Year 2021/22 
Operating and Capital Budget.  The session itself has no fiscal impact.  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

 
Attachments: 
1. 2020-2022 Strategic Priorities 
2. Work Plans 
3. Draft 2021-2023 Strategic Priorities 
4. Community Survey Results 
5. CIP Matrix 
6. Council Member Hudes’ Suggestions 
7. Ordinance List 
 

Page 8



STRATEGIC  

PRIORITIES 

FY 2020-2022 

CORE GOALS:  COMMUNITY CHARACTER • GOOD GOVERNANCE • FISCAL STABILITY • 
QUALITY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE •CIVIC ENRICHMENT• PUBLIC SAFETY 

SMALL TOWN SERVICE, COMMUNITY STEWARDSHIP, FUTURE FOCUS 

NEW 

Regional Housing Needs 
   Allocation Process 

Updating Town Ordinances in 
   Alignment with New State 
   Housing Legislation 

Regional Transportation 

IN PROGRESS 

General Plan 2040 
• Objective Standards
• Environmental Sustainability/

Climate Resiliency

Vehicle Miles Travelled Policy 

Streamline regulations to enhance 
Town businesses 

School Bus Pilot 

EOC Upgrades 

ONGOING PRIORITIES 

SAFETY 
Emergency Preparedness 

• CERT Recruitment and Training

• Community communication

Fire Protection 
• Vegetation management on Town properties

• Enhanced community education

QUALITY OF LIFE 
Community Vitality  

• Events and Other Efforts Town-wide

• Community Engagement

Economic Vitality 
• Policies and Ordinances

Land Use Planning 
• Housing Element

• Potential Area Plans and rezoning to implement
General Plan

TRAFFIC/TRANSPORTATION 
Comprehensive Parking Study 

• Short, Medium, and Long  Term Actions

Transportation Demand Management 
• Summer/Rush Hour/School Traffic

• Develop Measure B Transportation Projects

• Install Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements

• Community Shuttle

PRUDENT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
Address Pension and OPEB Obligations 

• Additional Discretionary Payments (ADPs)

• Reduced Amortization Strategies

• Pension Contribution Management Strategies

Sell or Lease Certain Town Properties 

RECENTLY COMPLETED 

Almond Grove Streets 

Measure G (Sales Tax) 
   Implementation 

$8.9 M CalPERS Pension Payment 

Short Term Rentals 

Complete Streets Policy  

One-Way Downtown Street Pilot 

Annexation of  Small County 
   Pockets 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 9



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

 

Town Manager’s Office 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Lead the entire Town staff organization to implement the policies and direction of the Town 
Council. 

2. Support individual and full Council decision-making, including all Council Committees and Ad Hoc 
Council Committees. 

3. Provide overall accountability for the entire Town operation, ensuring proper Town-wide fiscal 
and administrative controls. 

4. Provide constituent services to residents and businesses. 

5. Monitor regional efforts and state legislation to determine appropriate Town involvement. 

6. Represent the Town organization with other agencies and external organizations. 

7. Coordinate the preparation of Town Council and Council Committee agendas and packets. 

8. Manage the Town’s surplus real estate assets, including possible leases, sales, etc. 

9. Oversee the use of the Civic Center facilities. 

10. Engage the community by enhancing Town-wide communications, including social media. 

11. Monitor fiscal, economic, demographic, and other trends to assist the Council and the Town 
organization in developing strategic priorities. 

12. Provide support on Strategic Priorities while ensuring maintenance of core local government 
services. 

13. Administer the Community Health and Senior Services Commission. 

14. Oversee and administer the Human Services and Arts and Culture Community Grants. 

15. Track and oversee referrals from Town Council meetings, Council Members, and the Town 
Manager. 

16. Oversee Town Clerk, Information Technology, and Economic Vitality functions. 

17. Track performance to ensure timely, responsive, cost effective, and high quality services. 

18. Manage contracts with NUMU, Friends of the Library, and other community organizations 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less)  

A. Improve the transparency and access to government records through technology enhancements.  

B. Develop a Town Communications Plan focused on community engagement. 

C. Enhance Town-wide Emergency Preparedness.  

D. Lead Town inclusivity and Police reform efforts. 

E. Oversee COVID recovery efforts. 
 

  

Page 10



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

2 

Town Attorney 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Provide legal advice to the Town Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, 
Commissions, Committees, Boards, the Town Manager, Department Heads, and Town staff. 

2. Defend the Town against claims and litigation and initiates civil lawsuits on behalf of the Town. 

3. Enforce and prosecute violations of the Municipal Code, including both criminal prosecutions and 
civil abatements. 

4. Process and evaluate all personal injury, property damage, and other monetary claims against the 
Town and manages all litigation involving the Town. 

5. Administer the Town’s liability insurance and Risk Management Programs. 

6. Drafts and/or reviews all proposed ordinances, resolutions, and contracts. 

7. Negotiates key transactions such as property acquisitions. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Amend ordinances  and policies per Council priority. 

B. Amend the Claims Settlement Authority and Procedures. 

C. Amend the Purchasing and Contract Review Procedures. 

 

Clerk Department 

CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Administer local elections and fulfill the duties of the local Filing Officer and Filing Official under 
the Political Reform Act. 

2. Prepare, record, and maintain proceedings of Council meetings, minutes, ordinances, resolutions, 
contracts, etc. 

3. Maintain the Municipal Code. 

4. Coordinate the recruitment and appointment process for Boards, Commissions, and Committees. 

5. Be the custodian of the Town’s records and administration of Town-wide records management 
program. 

6. Coordinate cross-departmental responses to all Public Records Act requests.  

7. Coordinate and process all Town agreements. 

8. Review and process insurance certificates for agreements. 

9. Coordinate bid openings and bonds with Parks and Public Works. 

10. Coordinate the submittal of legal ads for all departments. 

11. Coordinate the Conflict of Interest Form 700 filings and Ethics Training requirements 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Work with IT to transition Commissioner applications to Laserfiche from SeamlessDocs. 

B. Implementing an electronic signature program (DocuSign) for processing agreements. 
 

  

Page 11



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

3 

Economic Vitality 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Act as a liaison between the Town, and current and prospective businesses to assist with the 
Town’s planning, building and code compliance processes, property/space matchmaking, and 
other business related needs. 

2. Collaborate with the Community Development Department on processing business permit 
applications and business related ordinance and policy updates. 

3. Work closely with the Chamber of Commerce, commercial brokerage community, and other 
organizations to promote Los Gatos. 

4. Develop and maintain relationships with property owners, business owners, and industry 
commercial real estate professionals in Los Gatos. 

5. Business outreach, retention and attraction through meetings, recognition programs, and 
education opportunities. 

6. Manage Chamber of Commerce relationship and annual contract.   

7. Oversee and administer Special Events permitting, street pole banners, and decorations. 

8. Participate in regional committees and professional groups as they relate to economic vitality, 
industry trends, and land use.  

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Continue to prepare policy and ordinance drafts for consideration by the Council Policy 
Committee, Planning Commission, and Town Council to continue to diversify business mix, 
simplify permit processes, and enhance business opportunities in Town. 

B. Provide guidance and direction for businesses on new policies and active resolutions that offer 
the opportunity for businesses to modify use permits and business practices. 

C. Develop opportunities to enrich downtown and create additional vitality.  

D. Inform and assist businesses to understand how new policies may be utilized by their specific 
business to create greater opportunities for their business including permit applications and 
conditional use permit modifications. 

E. Implement the Town’s economic recovery and community vitality efforts for the business 
community and other stakeholders, including but not limited to the Economic Recovery 
Resolution and its initiatives.  . 

 

  

Page 12



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

4 

Information Technology 

CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Complete contracting, purchasing, and payments for IT related consultants, contractors, and 
supplies. 

2. Train and inform users on productivity enhancements and emerging threats to network security. 

3. Maintain user accounts and associated security permissions for folders and systems. 

4. Replace PCs, laptops, servers, and network devices reaching end of useful life. 

5. Maintain hosted voice over IP phone system. 

6. Coordinate geographical information systems (mapping) data and online system improvements 
and maintenance. 

7. Maintain security updates and health of the Town’s network servers and network computers. 

8. Support network applications and user technical requests on systems, such as Police, Finance, 
Permitting, Public Works, document imaging, antivirus, online access, and others. 

9. Research and plan for productivity enhancements and other systems upgrades Town-wide. 

10. Maintain and improve backup systems to ensure business continuity. 

11. Maintain Office 365 suite, including cloud anti-spam, threat management, and content search for 
Public Record Act requests. 

12. Assist Departments with information technology research and procurement. 

13. Maintain internet service connections, firewalls, routers, switches, cabling, microwave, and 
wireless access points, and other equipment. 

14. Support technology in patrol vehicles, including vehicle and officer worn cameras, laptops, 
wireless connections, and network security. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Implement technology enhancements for efficiencies and preparedness. 

B. Perform security audits of systems and accounts. 

C. Implement a multi-factor authentication system for increased security. 

D. Complete network upgrade of next generation firewalls of Town, Library, and PD networks. 

E. Complete various application migrations for older Windows Servers upgrades.   

F. Setup network and IT infrastructure needs for new PPW Engineering building renovation. 

 

  

Page 13



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

5 

 

Library Services 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Oversee entire library operation as a seven day, 54 hours per week public service. 
2. Manage the circulation of materials. 

3. Provide reference and reader’s advisory services in-person, via email, via instant message, and via 
telephone. 

4. Maintain and develop the collection by anticipating the informational needs of the local 
community. 

5. Provide outreach services within the community, connecting and showcasing library services. 

6. Implement up-to-date technology and virtual services. 
7. Provide Children’s, Teen, and Adult programming, including story times, special family programs, 

Summer Reading, Be A Book Family, book clubs, technology trainings, special presenters etc. 

8. Administer the Library Board and the Arts and Culture Commission. 

9. Support Friends of the Library programming, events, projects and meetings. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Adapt service models due to COVID impacts and develop services and programs that assist 
with community recovery. 

B. Diversify historical archives by seeking out materials and recording oral histories reflecting 
the past and present experiences of People of Color within Los Gatos.  

C. Replace public access computers with circulating laptops for public use and modify existing 
computer seating areas to accommodate more flexible library use.  

D. Implement a sound mitigation plan for Library lobby.  
 

  

Page 14



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

6 

 

Police 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Provide police services to the Town of Los Gatos and contractually to the City of Monte Sereno. 

2. Respond to emergency and non-emergency calls for service, conduct proactive vehicle and foot 
patrol as well as special operations to interdict crime and build community partnerships.  

3. Review all criminal cases, conduct follow-up investigations, prepare and present appropriate 
cases to the District Attorney for prosecution.  

4. Operate the Dispatch Center for emergency and non-emergency calls, including support to field 
staff and coordination with other agencies. 

5. Provide police services and educational opportunities to K-12 school campuses, including 
substance abuse prevention, vaping diversion programs, active shooter response, cyber-bullying 
and digital safety awareness. 

6. Maintain safe and orderly flow of traffic through pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular traffic 
enforcement and education. Manage the Town’s parking permit program, enforce applicable 
parking regulations and engage in abandoned vehicle abatement efforts. 

7. Establish and maintain special duty teams, including K-9, Bicycle, Special Weapons and Tactics, 
Hostage Negotiation, Traffic Investigations, Crime Scene, Homeless Liaison and Peer Support. 

8. Build community partnerships by participating in Department and community programs such as 
Coffee with A Cop, Drug Free Meetings, Safe Routes to School, Special Needs Awareness Program 
(SNAP), and Crisis Text Line partnership. 

9. Create and implement proactive solutions to keep the community safe, such as Neighborhood 
Watch Meetings, Los Gatos on Watch Program, Victim Services Unit, Volunteers in Policing and 
Operation C.A.R.E. (senior wellness check-in). 

10. Coordinate with the Town Manager’s Office and Santa Clara County Fire Department to build a 
robust emergency preparedness capacity to include ability to manage and recover from critical 
incidents, administration of Community Emergency Response Teams and assistance with revisions 
to the Town’s Emergency Operations Plan. 

11. Evaluate public safety requirements for proposed Special Events. 

12. Administer the Youth Commission. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Recruit, hire and retain sworn and civilian police staff to fill existing and anticipated vacancies. 
Ensure that Department staffing is commensurate with Town growth. 

B. Implement technology projects, including replacement of CAD/RMS, Body Worn Cameras/Mobile 
Audio Video, automated feedback and customer service survey system and a full feature online 
report system. 

C. Continue to partner with Santa Clara County Behavioral Health Services to implement and expand 
the Mobile Crisis Response Teams that will assist adults and juveniles suffering from mental 
health issues. 

D. Monitor State legislation and update policies and procedures to ensure compliance, including: AB 
748 (disclosure of audio and video recordings); AB 1421 (release of peace officer personnel 
records) and AB 953 (racial profiling mandates and vehicle stop data collection). 

E. Continue to participate in implementation of the Silicon Valley Regional Communication System 
that will provide all County public safety entities with full digital interoperability. 

F. Institute a Wellness/Resiliency program for Department members centered on development of 
functional fitness and compassion cultivation training. 

 

 

Page 15



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

7 

Parks and Public Works (PPW) 

CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Maintain and operate Town assets (parks, streets, buildings, and vehicles), including emergency 
repairs. 

2. Develop and deliver the Town’s capital project program. 

3. Lead and advance the Los Gatos Safe Routes to School program 

4. Represent the Town on the VTA Technical Advisory Committee and Capital Improvement 
Committee. 

5. Administer the Complete Streets and Transportation and Parks Commissions 

6. Seek grant opportunities to advance Town priorities. 

7. Represent the Town in efforts of the Beautification Committee. 

8. Evaluate all engineering, stormwater, and traffic issues for private development applications. 

9. Approve and inspect public improvements constructed by developers as required by their permits. 

10. Permit and inspect construction activities in Town right-of-way, including coordination with outside 
agencies and utilities. 

11. Manage all park reservations. 

12. Coordinate with West Valley Clean Water Program and other agencies on environmental services, 
including increased stormwater regulations, water resource issues, and clean energy. 

13. Act as the liaison with the West Valley Solid Waste Authority 

14. Review and permit tree removal applications. 

15. Create and maintain databases on Town infrastructure needs. 

16. Evaluate public works implications for proposed Special Events. 

17. Manage Landscape and Lighting Districts. 

18. Implement enhanced community outreach plans to ensure residents are aware and engaged. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Support efforts related to COVID-19 and economic stability. 

B. Develop and deliver vegetation management for wildfire risk reduction. 

C. Advance mitigation measures for traffic congestion in Town. 

D. Deliver projects in the Connect Los Gatos Transportation Program. 

E. Manage the Phase 1 North 40 construction activities in coordination with CDD. 

F. Continue to pursue funding and implementing projects from Measure B. 

G. Support implementation of the downtown parklets pilot program. 

H. Support General Plan Update. 

I. Develop Transportation Policies and Transportation Demand Management Policy. 

J. Develop a Policy for Small Cellular Installations. 

K. Lead implementation of SB1383 (organics recycling). 

  

Page 16



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

8 

Community Development (CDD) 
 

CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Review, analyze, and prepare reports for all Planning applications, working with applicants, other 
departments, interested residents, outside agencies, and others. 

2. Administer Planning Commission, Conceptual Development Committee, General Plan Committee, 
Historic Preservation Committee, and Development Review Committee. 

3. Review and analyze all Building applications, working with applicants, other departments, 
interested residents, outside agencies, and others. 

4. Oversee and manage Building Plan Check consultant. 

5. Inspect all construction projects for Planning and Building compliance. 

6. Respond and resolve Code compliance cases. 

7. Respond to resident and business inquiries regarding allowable uses and development options. 

8. Evaluate proposed business uses prior to Business License and Certificates of Use and Occupancy 
issuance. 

9. Prepare land use data for annual Joint Venture Silicon Valley survey, Valley Transportation 
Authority Survey, Department of Finance population estimates, Association of Bay Area 
Governments and Metropolitan Transportation Commission surveys, and other data requests. 

10. Monitor and participate as appropriate in Plan Bay Area Update, State legislation, and other 
efforts. 

11. Oversee the Below Market Price housing program. 

12. Oversee and manage Town consultants providing arborist, architecture, environmental review, 
housing, and other services. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Support Council consideration of several land use applications. 

B. Administer the General Plan Update. 

C. Administer the development of Objective Standards. 

D. Update land use policies based on Policy Committee efforts. 

E. Update the Zoning Code to be consistent with new State laws and Council Strategic Priorities. 

F. Administer the Housing Element Update 

G. Manage the Phase 1 North 40 construction activities in coordination with PPW. 

 

  

Page 17



Town of Los Gatos 
Department Work Plans 

 

9 

Finance 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Provide prudent, professional financial management and internal controls of all accounting 
functions for the Town’s funds and accounts. 

2. Prepare the Town’s annual operating and five year capital budgets for fiscal and service 
accountability, including the five and ten year forecast. 

3. Receive an annual, third party finance and compliance audit, actuarial studies, and other fiscal 
reports.  

4. Complete the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) to verify proper fiscal practices. 

5. Prepare materials for the Finance Commission. 

6. Administer the Town’s business license, accounts payable, accounts receivable, and payroll 
functions. 

7. Oversee the Town’s purchasing, debt service, investments, trusts, and claims administration 
functions. 

8. Account and maintain records on the Town’s fixed assets (equipment and infrastructure).   

9. Oversee the Town’s investments and provide quarterly investment report for Town Council. 

10. Provide financial administration to the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Complete financial system upgrade to a cloud- based application. 

 

Human Resources 
CORE SERVICES (90% +) 

1. Attract, develop, and retain a quality workforce, as well as training and professional development. 

2. Oversee compensation, classification, benefits, safety, workers’ compensation, and other 
employment-related policies and programs. 

3. Oversee employee relations, including matters related to labor relations and bargaining 
agreements. 

4. Manage employee, retiree, and COBRA benefits, including coordination with CalPERS and industry 
brokers for maintenance and implementation of all benefit plans (medical, dental, vision, 
deferred compensation, life, disability, and supplemental insurances). 

5. Develop, maintain and update employment policies, including the oversight of legal mandates for 
the workplace. 

6. Administer performance management, including the annual evaluation system. 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (10% or less) 

A. Administer the Annual Health Open Enrollment for benefits changes that are effective January 
2022. 

B. Review existing Human Resources related Administrative Procedures and recommend revisions or 
creation of new procedures, as necessary.  In addition, update the Town’s Personnel Rules and 
Regulations to reflect current federal and state legislation. 

C. Continue to update existing job classifications to capture current job duties, required knowledge/ 
skills/abilities, and minimum educational and experience requirements and create new job 
classifications as needed. 

D. Implement a performance evaluation platform. 

E. Negotiate labor contracts for the Town Employees’ Association, the American Federation of State, 
County and Municipal Employees, and the Police Officers’ Association. 

 

Page 18



STRATEGIC  

PRIORITIES 

FY 2021-2023 

CORE GOALS:  COMMUNITY CHARACTER • GOOD GOVERNANCE • FISCAL STABILITY • 
QUALITY PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE •CIVIC ENRICHMENT• PUBLIC SAFETY 

SMALL TOWN SERVICE, COMMUNITY STEWARDSHIP, FUTURE FOCUS 

IN PROGRESS 

General Plan 2040 
• Objective Standards
• Environmental Sustainability/

Climate Resiliency

Vehicle Miles Travelled Policy 

Regional Transportation Issues 

Dittos Lane Afffordable Housing 

Pandemic Recovery 

Police Reforms 

Inclusive Community Efforts 

ONGOING PRIORITIES 

SAFETY 
Emergency Preparedness 

• CERT Recruitment and Training

• EOC Readiness and Emergency Plan Develop-
ment

Fire Protection 
• Vegetation management

• Implementation of Ad Hoc Wildfire Mitigation
Plan

QUALITY OF LIFE 
Community Vitality  

• Events and Other Town-wide Efforts

• Community Engagement

Economic Vitality 
• Policies and Ordinances

Land Use Planning 
• Housing Element

• Potential Area Plans and rezoning to implement
General Plan

TRAFFIC/TRANSPORTATION 
Comprehensive Parking Study 

• Short, Medium, and Long  Term Actions

Transportation Demand Management 
• Summer/Rush Hour/School Traffic

• Develop Measure B Transportation Projects

• Install Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements

• Community Shuttle

PRUDENT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
Address Pension and OPEB Obligations 

• Additional Discretionary Payments (ADPs)
Opportunities

Sell or Lease Certain Town Properties 

RECENTLY COMPLETED 

Streamline regulations to enhance 
Town businesses 

EOC Communication and Situa-
tional Awareness Upgrades 

Leased Tait and Forbes Mill 

Ad Hoc Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

ATTACHMENT 3

Page 19



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

1 / 18

Q1 Please rank the current ongoing Town Strategic Priorities from most to
least important.
Answered: 404 Skipped: 7

Emergency
Preparedness...

Fire
Protection –...

Community
Vitality –...

Economic
Vitality –...

Land Use
Planning –...

Comprehensive
Parking Stud...

Transportation
Demand...

Address
Pension and...

Sell or Lease
Certain Town...

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Attachment 4
Page 20



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

2 / 18

17.51%
69

18.53%
73

16.75%
66

10.91%
43

11.93%
47

10.15%
40

9.39%
37

3.55%
14

1.27%
5

 
394

 
6.25

21.55%
86

21.05%
84

14.29%
57

12.78%
51

11.78%
47

9.77%
39

4.76%
19

3.26%
13

0.75%
3

 
399

 
6.59

8.16%
32

12.76%
50

9.44%
37

15.31%
60

11.73%
46

15.05%
59

10.71%
42

10.71%
42

6.12%
24

 
392

 
5.12

30.05%
119

18.94%
75

17.42%
69

13.89%
55

9.09%
36

4.29%
17

4.04%
16

1.26%
5

1.01%
4

 
396

 
7.06

5.40%
21

7.20%
28

11.05%
43

14.40%
56

18.25%
71

15.68%
61

17.22%
67

7.97%
31

2.83%
11

 
389

 
4.94

1.03%
4

7.49%
29

9.56%
37

13.95%
54

16.28%
63

16.28%
63

17.31%
67

10.85%
42

7.24%
28

 
387

 
4.47

13.60%
54

11.84%
47

16.62%
66

11.08%
44

10.33%
41

12.34%
49

15.11%
60

6.30%
25

2.77%
11

 
397

 
5.62

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 TOTAL SCORE

Emergency
Preparedness –
Community
communication,
Emergency
Operation Center
upgrades, and
Community
Emergency
Resource Team
(CERT)
recruitment and
training

Fire Protection –
Vegetation
management on
Town properties
and enhanced
community
education

Community
Vitality –
Facilitate events
and other
activities to
attract people to
Los Gatos and
build stronger
community
connections

Economic Vitality
– Support Los
Gatos businesses
by streamlining
Town processes,
supporting
COVID-19
economic
recovery, and
assisting
businesses locate
in Town

Land Use
Planning –
Housing Element
and General Plan
Update

Comprehensive
Parking Study –
Short, medium,
and long-term
actions to
improve parking
in Town

Transportation
Demand
Management –
Regional
transportation,
summer/rush

Page 21



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

3 / 18

4.31%
17

1.78%
7

3.30%
13

5.58%
22

6.35%
25

10.91%
43

12.69%
50

33.76%
133

21.32%
84

 
394

 
3.12

0.26%
1

1.54%
6

2.31%
9

2.31%
9

4.37%
17

4.88%
19

7.71%
30

21.85%
85

54.76%
213

 
389

 
2.08

hour/school
traffic,
bicycle/pedestrian
improvements,
community
shuttle, Measure
B transportation
projects

Address Pension
and Other Post-
Employment
Benefits (OPEB)
Obligations –
Additional
discretionary
payments,
pension
contribution
management
strategies,
reduced
amortization
strategies

Sell or Lease
Certain Town
Properties

Page 22



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

4 / 18

49.44% 175

50.56% 179

Q2 Would you like to see the Town shift the focus of its Strategic Priorities
to new efforts?
Answered: 354 Skipped: 57

TOTAL 354

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Page 23



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

5 / 18

100.00% 175

81.71% 143

69.14% 121

Q3 If yes, please provide your top choices for new Town Strategic
Priorities.

Answered: 175 Skipped: 236

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

First Choice

Second Choice

Third Choice 

Page 24



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

6 / 18

# FIRST CHOICE DATE

1 Keep the town beautiful to attract business and people: Roads, sidewalks, bridges in perfect
condition

1/4/2021 2:25 PM

2 fire abatement 1/4/2021 11:43 AM

3 Traffic/Parking 1/4/2021 9:40 AM

4 vitalize n santa cruz st 1/4/2021 9:17 AM

5 Fire Safety 1/3/2021 10:29 AM

6 Fire Protection 1/3/2021 7:24 AM

7 Streamline the Planning process for fire-safe building applications 1/2/2021 6:01 PM

8 Fire Protection 1/2/2021 4:10 PM

9 Emergency preparedness 1/2/2021 3:37 PM

10 Environmentally friendly town 1/2/2021 3:37 PM

11 Safety (including Fire) 1/2/2021 3:24 PM

12 Economic vitality 1/2/2021 2:59 PM

13 Summer traffic 1/2/2021 2:51 PM

14 Fire Protection 1/2/2021 2:36 PM

15 Fire protection and prep 1/2/2021 2:11 PM

16 Fire Protection 1/2/2021 1:57 PM

17 Reduce taxes for residents 12/26/2020 7:51 PM

18 parking - you should turn the flat lot at tate and main to an underground parking, with 2 levels
above ground.

12/26/2020 2:08 PM

19 Safety, how do emergency vehicles get through town with so much uncontrolled grid lock 12/24/2020 10:07 AM

20 Highway 17 and town beach traffic 12/19/2020 8:55 AM

21 A plan to save businesses during pandemic 12/18/2020 8:16 AM

22 Support community programs such as Rec department 12/17/2020 5:46 PM

23 create fire buffer areas between the town and the mountains 12/17/2020 5:37 PM

24 Traffic congestion 12/17/2020 1:05 PM

25 land use 12/17/2020 11:15 AM

26 Crime prevention 12/16/2020 9:09 PM

27 Climate change 12/16/2020 3:43 PM

28 Encourage dining and shopping. Ease rules and barriers of entry 12/16/2020 11:51 AM

29 Economic recovery 12/16/2020 10:01 AM

30 Identify what is most critical to make effective needed changes 12/14/2020 1:42 PM

31 Safe roads for school 12/12/2020 10:23 AM

32 Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 12/12/2020 7:35 AM

33 Down down life 12/11/2020 6:38 PM

34 Among current priorities consider strategic plan for senior issues 12/11/2020 10:52 AM

35 Racial, socio-economic diversity 12/10/2020 8:02 PM

36 Diversity 12/10/2020 5:20 PM

37 Continue the outdoor dining/ entertainment options even after COVID 12/7/2020 10:36 PM

Page 25



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

7 / 18

38 Parking for employees & customers 12/7/2020 9:43 PM

39 more bike lanes, sidewalks, and traffic management 12/6/2020 9:44 PM

40 Senior Citizen Accommodations & Services 12/6/2020 3:48 PM

41 Fire Prevention 12/5/2020 8:10 PM

42 More affordable housing 12/5/2020 12:23 PM

43 Racial equity and addressing issues with policing 12/5/2020 11:41 AM

44 Resolve Hiway 17 gridlock thru neighborhoods! Dangerous! Can’t get I out/in or move for 8 hrs-
especially 1st-Tait & 2nd is Bayviee

12/5/2020 11:01 AM

45 Traffic reduction 12/5/2020 6:33 AM

46 Housing that is less expensive to built; modular. 12/4/2020 9:31 PM

47 Beach traffic 12/4/2020 9:00 PM

48 No more high density projects! Deal with beach traffic! 12/4/2020 6:29 PM

49 Clean our streets and entry way to our town 12/4/2020 2:11 PM

50 Hillside home fire protection and education, increase inspections and follow up for property
owners who do not comply with the requirements

12/4/2020 1:35 PM

51 Fire Protection including Emergency Planning (earthquakes, etc.) 12/4/2020 1:11 PM

52 downtown summer gridlock traffic! 12/4/2020 12:02 PM

53 Developlment 12/4/2020 12:01 PM

54 NO MORE DEVELOPMENTS! 12/4/2020 10:09 AM

55 Fighting state on giving back local control of housing & building in town. Use your community
support.

12/4/2020 10:09 AM

56 retain green & open space 12/4/2020 10:07 AM

57 Less restrictive on property owners rights 12/4/2020 6:59 AM

58 Bring life to downtown 12/4/2020 6:24 AM

59 Economic recovery and small business support 12/4/2020 6:21 AM

60 dealing with summer traffic and shutting down North Santa Cruz on weekends 12/4/2020 6:20 AM

61 Summer Beach Traffic/Additional LaneLark-Hwy9 12/4/2020 6:15 AM

62 More toilets 12/4/2020 12:27 AM

63 Widen highway 17 and prevent traffic backup into town 12/3/2020 10:54 PM

64 Schools 12/3/2020 7:25 PM

65 Address climate change by promoting plant-based diets 12/3/2020 4:44 PM

66 Get rid of the parklets. What an eyesore. Horrible. 12/3/2020 3:23 PM

67 Affordable low-income housing 12/3/2020 11:15 AM

68 Inclusive Community 12/3/2020 10:43 AM

69 Public safety unaddressed issues for glenridge area 12/3/2020 6:21 AM

70 Traffic 12/2/2020 8:47 PM

71 Fiscal sustainability - managing our debt 12/2/2020 4:13 PM

72 Support for Mental Health Services 12/2/2020 2:44 PM

73 Traffic 12/2/2020 2:33 PM

74 Parking 12/2/2020 2:06 PM

75 make it easier for businesses to do business in LG 12/2/2020 1:00 PM

Page 26



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

8 / 18

76 Fire prevention 12/2/2020 12:02 PM

77 What are they??? 12/2/2020 11:27 AM

78 Arts 12/2/2020 11:09 AM

79 Fire mitigation 12/2/2020 10:31 AM

80 Economic Vitality 12/2/2020 10:18 AM

81 low income transportation 12/2/2020 10:08 AM

82 Honest disclosure or pension and healthcare costs and more transparency on labor
negotiations.

12/2/2020 9:05 AM

83 Disallow conversion of residential property to commercial 12/2/2020 8:56 AM

84 Environmental impact 12/2/2020 8:52 AM

85 When considering transportation and traffic issues please consider drivers at a higher level
than bicyclists as drivers are paying for the roads through DMV and we follow the laws.

12/2/2020 8:50 AM

86 Safety & Security, enhanced police protection plans, resources, and community
communication for protests or riots and associated crimes

12/2/2020 7:56 AM

87 crosswalks & stop signs added and upgraded 12/2/2020 7:41 AM

88 Help local restaurants and business most impacted by shutdown 12/2/2020 2:33 AM

89 Summer Traffic should be addressed 12/2/2020 12:23 AM

90 This town needs a dedicated emergency communications and warning system like other
communities. SCCAlerts are not remotely sufficient if / when wildfires break out in downtown.
It’s just a matter of time given our location, climate change and few roads in/out of town. .

12/1/2020 10:24 PM

91 Traffic 12/1/2020 8:55 PM

92 Climate change mitigation and adaptation 12/1/2020 8:50 PM

93 diversity and inclusivity 12/1/2020 8:18 PM

94 Emergency preparedness 12/1/2020 8:01 PM

95 Support small business, not chains; climate change policy 12/1/2020 7:59 PM

96 Build a bridge or tunnel to increase the flow of pedestrians and bikers from Safeway side of
town to downtown. The bridge should be between Double D's and Flights over to the parking
area toward the Tesla charging lot behind Starbucks. The lights take WAY too long at HWY 9
and University due to Caltrans control. The traffic is horrific on University from Vasona toward
downtown since the turning lanes have been redone.

12/1/2020 7:31 PM

97 Affordable housing and more multi dwelling residential construction 12/1/2020 7:28 PM

98 control summer cut thru traffic it shuts down our town 12/1/2020 6:41 PM

99 Summer beach traffic clogging local streets on weekends 12/1/2020 6:32 PM

100 Set commercial rent limits or offer landlords tax incentives to reduce rents to reduce
vacanciess

12/1/2020 6:28 PM

101 Homeless 12/1/2020 5:54 PM

102 A dedicated Pickleball Facility 12/1/2020 5:38 PM

103 drawing interesting and non-chain stores to the downtown core 12/1/2020 5:31 PM

104 land use 12/1/2020 5:12 PM

105 Implement a transparent, community-engaged review of the police use-of-force policy and bring
transparency to police disciplinary issues. (e.g. Obama Foundation "Mayors Pledge")

12/1/2020 5:05 PM

106 Less bureaucracy for home owners to fix up their homes 12/1/2020 4:51 PM

107 CoVid Recovery 12/1/2020 4:29 PM

108 Re-vitalize downtown including replacement of the ugly concrete barriers on Santa Cruz Ave 12/1/2020 4:25 PM

Page 27



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

9 / 18

109 Energy efficiency 12/1/2020 4:23 PM

110 Fiber to the house 12/1/2020 4:23 PM

111 Covid safety- enforce mask mandate 12/1/2020 4:22 PM

112 train homeowners in fire mitigation 12/1/2020 4:20 PM

113 Fire & Disaster Preparedness & Managing Forest/Vegetation 12/1/2020 3:59 PM

114 Enforce existing ordinances 12/1/2020 3:53 PM

115 Seniors of our community need a center & activities like Saratoga/Campbell/Camden not
combined with homeless

12/1/2020 3:49 PM

116 Urban Agriculture 12/1/2020 3:27 PM

117 Post Covid economic recovery 12/1/2020 3:23 PM

118 Dog Park 12/1/2020 3:16 PM

119 Economic Vitality (same) 12/1/2020 3:08 PM

120 Attract more businesses/restaurants/stores not only high end 12/1/2020 3:02 PM

121 Make permanent the use of street front parking for restaurants. It added SO much to the
energy and vitality of the downtown!

12/1/2020 2:56 PM

122 No new high density housing and associated traffic issues. The north 40 and Lark Ave is
reprehensible.

12/1/2020 2:56 PM

123 Focus less on downtown 12/1/2020 2:40 PM

124 Emergency preparedness 12/1/2020 2:36 PM

125 Affordable housing in spaces were crowding is not an issue 12/1/2020 2:34 PM

126 Density 12/1/2020 2:33 PM

127 Summer traffic abatement 12/1/2020 2:27 PM

128 Address Traffic flow and weekend overflow 12/1/2020 2:25 PM

129 Smaller and more affordable housing units 12/1/2020 2:18 PM

130 Adopt a long-term view on future of transportation - E.g. underground light rail extension,
electrification, accommodations for self driving vehicles, elimination of above ground parking,
establishing pedestrian-only streets

12/1/2020 2:13 PM

131 Build Back Better as we get COVID-19 under control 12/1/2020 2:11 PM

132 Make LG more walkable; establish vehicle-free zones and roads 12/1/2020 2:09 PM

133 Deal with current event issues first 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

134 Open space 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

135 Transportation management 12/1/2020 2:00 PM

136 Economic Vitality 12/1/2020 1:58 PM

137 Economics - How to attract and keep businesses alive and well in town. 12/1/2020 1:57 PM

138 Public safety 12/1/2020 1:54 PM

139 Economic 12/1/2020 1:46 PM

140 Hillside and Neighborhood preservation 12/1/2020 1:45 PM

141 Upgrade town services. Specifically police, code enforcement and parks services. Major
overhall required.

12/1/2020 1:45 PM

142 Transportation 12/1/2020 1:44 PM

143 Landlord/Business Rental/Small Business rent control (we are losing xlnt businesss to other
towns because our rents are too high)

12/1/2020 1:44 PM

Page 28



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

10 / 18

144 get flashing cross walks downtown like other towns do. it is extremely dangerous and you can't
see people in the crosswalks in the rain. someone is going to lose their life to a driver who just
can't see the person at night.

12/1/2020 1:35 PM

145 Transportation 12/1/2020 1:34 PM

146 Fire safety 12/1/2020 1:33 PM

147 Maintaining space for natural vegetation and animals 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

148 Eliminate in-town beach traffic. 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

149 Fire safety 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

150 Parking solutions 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

151 Priority on summer traffic clogging our town, I see it's sandwiched in with cycle paths,
pedestrian and public transport improvements, but who wants to ride their bike through clogged
roads with cars pumping out pollution into the air and drivers putting cyclists lives in danger as
they grow increasingly angry, we hear it downtown all the time, the endless angry horns. The
summer traffic issue desperately needs fixing before any other issues can be put into place.

12/1/2020 1:24 PM

152 Making parklets permanent/ close santa cruz ave 12/1/2020 1:23 PM

153 intelligent approach to traffic management 12/1/2020 1:19 PM

154 Traffic 12/1/2020 1:14 PM

155 Pension reform, pensions will kill all other priorities 12/1/2020 1:14 PM

156 Economic Vitality 12/1/2020 1:10 PM

157 Defy Santa Clara County and Return Kids to School - Follow the Science 12/1/2020 1:08 PM

158 Emergency preparedness. 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

159 Emergency preparedness 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

160 Traffic on LG Boulevard/Lark Avenue 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

161 keeping downtown alive 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

162 A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

163 Homeless encampments - address growing problems before it’s so bad it can’t be solved as in
neighboring communities

12/1/2020 12:59 PM

164 Streamline and remove bloat from building and grading process 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

165 Reduce town traffic 12/1/2020 12:57 PM

166 Help support local bussiness's its very important to the towns continued growth 12/1/2020 12:54 PM

167 Pedestrian zone in the city center 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

168 Economic Vitality 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

169 Ditch building a parking structure dwtn 12/1/2020 12:48 PM

170 Transportation/Traffic/Parking Management especially during summer 12/1/2020 12:46 PM

171 Fire 12/1/2020 12:42 PM

172 Transportation Improvements 12/1/2020 12:27 PM

173 This may be under economic vitality, but having an active and thriving pedestrian friendly
downtown will be the single greatest asset to bring residents and visitors.

12/1/2020 11:37 AM

174 Affordable housing 12/1/2020 11:37 AM

175 Beach traffic 12/1/2020 11:10 AM

Page 29



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

11 / 18

# SECOND CHOICE DATE

1 Town landscaping, medians, perfectly maintained 1/4/2021 2:25 PM

2 emergency planing 1/4/2021 11:43 AM

3 Fire/emergency planning 1/4/2021 9:40 AM

4 Ease of Planning 1/3/2021 10:29 AM

5 Transparent and Fiscally Responsible Town Finances 1/3/2021 7:24 AM

6 Streamline the Permitting process for fire-safe building applications 1/2/2021 6:01 PM

7 Emergency Preparedness 1/2/2021 4:10 PM

8 Fire protection 1/2/2021 3:37 PM

9 Green initiatives 1/2/2021 3:37 PM

10 Obligations (financial) 1/2/2021 3:24 PM

11 Community vitality 1/2/2021 2:59 PM

12 Town business vitality - outdoor venues 1/2/2021 2:51 PM

13 Emergency Preparedness 1/2/2021 2:36 PM

14 Support local businesses 1/2/2021 2:11 PM

15 Emergency Preparedness 1/2/2021 1:57 PM

16 Protect residents' property-- fire, emergency preparedness 12/26/2020 7:51 PM

17 parking 12/26/2020 2:08 PM

18 Make crosswalks more visable to see pedestrians 12/24/2020 10:07 AM

19 Downtown economic vitality 12/19/2020 8:55 AM

20 Support senior services 12/17/2020 5:46 PM

21 enhance walkability 12/17/2020 5:37 PM

22 Trails and park connections 12/17/2020 1:05 PM

23 Economic vitality 12/17/2020 11:15 AM

24 Homeless 12/16/2020 9:09 PM

25 Overarching Covid strategy (small business support, vaccine distribution, etc) 12/16/2020 3:43 PM

26 Rooftop outdoor dining (should have approved this for Double D’s) 12/16/2020 11:51 AM

27 Traffic mitigation 12/16/2020 10:01 AM

28 Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 12/12/2020 7:35 AM

29 Streamline business approvals 12/11/2020 6:38 PM

30 Regional solutions to traffic and housing 12/10/2020 8:02 PM

31 Affordable Housing 12/10/2020 5:20 PM

32 Bike paths/ lanes/ trails 12/7/2020 10:36 PM

33 Beach traffic 12/7/2020 9:43 PM

34 wildfire prevention and emergency preparedness 12/6/2020 9:44 PM

35 Fire Protection 12/5/2020 8:10 PM

36 More green energy used 12/5/2020 12:23 PM

37 Affordable housing 12/5/2020 11:41 AM

38 Help downtown businesses. Fill vacancies but no more massage parlors! or nail salons 12/5/2020 11:01 AM

Page 30



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

12 / 18

39 Regulation reduction; for each new regulation, terminate 2. 12/4/2020 9:31 PM

40 No more housing 12/4/2020 9:00 PM

41 Fire prevention to prevent catastrophic fires, 12/4/2020 6:29 PM

42 Faster building permits ease on restrictions 12/4/2020 2:11 PM

43 Economic vitality 12/4/2020 1:11 PM

44 stop allowing large corporations to develop our bedroom community!!! 12/4/2020 12:02 PM

45 Fire protection 12/4/2020 12:01 PM

46 NO MORE SIGNS AND BIKE LANES 12/4/2020 10:09 AM

47 retain small town atmosphere: locally owned businesses 12/4/2020 10:07 AM

48 Ease up on zoning including HR density 12/4/2020 6:59 AM

49 Stop the bureaucracy- new town council members should be held accountable 12/4/2020 6:24 AM

50 Build parking structures at the end of the town by chase bank 12/4/2020 6:21 AM

51 More housing 12/4/2020 6:20 AM

52 more toilets 12/4/2020 12:27 AM

53 Expand parks and trails and biking 12/3/2020 10:54 PM

54 Traffic 12/3/2020 7:25 PM

55 Address climate change by promoting fossil fuel alternatives 12/3/2020 4:44 PM

56 Stop closing traffic lanes. 12/3/2020 3:23 PM

57 outside/Independent oversight of police department 12/3/2020 11:15 AM

58 Neighborhood Vitality (different than community) 12/3/2020 10:43 AM

59 Parking 12/2/2020 8:47 PM

60 Economic viability - encouraging business development 12/2/2020 4:13 PM

61 Affordable Housing - The Missing Middle 12/2/2020 2:44 PM

62 Parking 12/2/2020 2:33 PM

63 Land use 12/2/2020 2:06 PM

64 stick to a plan to control summer beach traffic thru town 12/2/2020 1:00 PM

65 Emergency preparedness 12/2/2020 12:02 PM

66 You assume that we know what they are! 12/2/2020 11:27 AM

67 Tourism 12/2/2020 11:09 AM

68 Pensions 12/2/2020 10:31 AM

69 Fire Protection 12/2/2020 10:18 AM

70 low income housing 12/2/2020 10:08 AM

71 Vacant commercial property that was converted from residential must revert to residential 12/2/2020 8:56 AM

72 Fire and disaster preparedness 12/2/2020 8:52 AM

73 climate & enviromental support 12/2/2020 7:41 AM

74 Stop with projects that bring more traffic to town such as north 40. That land could have been
used for parks, houses, nature preserve, etc.

12/2/2020 2:33 AM

75 I agree with the rest of your list 12/2/2020 12:23 AM

76 Veterans memorial is starting to look shabby. Has anyone noticed the flame is peeling away on
the inside in big strips? And the huge temporary banner for Covid first responders that seems

12/1/2020 10:24 PM

Page 31



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

13 / 18

to be a permanent fixture? Who is overseeing this corner of town property that was once a
lovely park?

77 Affordable housing 12/1/2020 8:50 PM

78 Fire protection 12/1/2020 8:01 PM

79 Walkability 12/1/2020 7:59 PM

80 Caring for/serving senior residents 12/1/2020 7:28 PM

81 improve pedestrian and bicycle safety 12/1/2020 6:41 PM

82 Underground electric wires and cables 12/1/2020 6:28 PM

83 Economic vitality 12/1/2020 5:54 PM

84 A Community Center 12/1/2020 5:38 PM

85 drawing younger and more diverse famlies to area 12/1/2020 5:31 PM

86 parking lots 12/1/2020 5:12 PM

87 Address "urban blight" issues of poorly maintained vacant/abandoned commercial properties
such as the car dealership on Los Gatos Blvd.

12/1/2020 5:05 PM

88 Review school zones so all LG residents can attend schools within Los Gatos 12/1/2020 4:51 PM

89 We are all in this together - Communication 12/1/2020 4:29 PM

90 Building electrification 12/1/2020 4:23 PM

91 Covid safety 12/1/2020 4:22 PM

92 train homeowners in best practices for fre preparedness 12/1/2020 4:20 PM

93 Downtown:: attract biz (check rents), people friendly, traffic/parking 12/1/2020 3:59 PM

94 Freeze all new housing construction 12/1/2020 3:53 PM

95 Health and safety 12/1/2020 3:23 PM

96 Skateboard Park 12/1/2020 3:16 PM

97 Transportation Demand (same) 12/1/2020 3:08 PM

98 Hide portion of highway 17 that goes through town in the tunnel 12/1/2020 3:02 PM

99 Help LG restaurants by allowing more patio dining 12/1/2020 2:56 PM

100 The green bike lanes have done more harm than good by removing normal traffic lanes,
removing safe turn lanes, and likely will contribute to bike/car collisions because bicyclists
tend to usually disobey the rules, e.g. wrong side of road, run stop signs, no turn signals.

12/1/2020 2:56 PM

101 better focus on fringe area residential issues 12/1/2020 2:40 PM

102 Summer traffic 12/1/2020 2:36 PM

103 Better efforts to welcome new people who move into L.G. 12/1/2020 2:34 PM

104 Los Gatos Blvd light rail 12/1/2020 2:33 PM

105 Summer traffic abatement 12/1/2020 2:27 PM

106 Manage land use and planning to stay within our available infrastructure not overwhelming it 12/1/2020 2:25 PM

107 Racial and social justice 12/1/2020 2:18 PM

108 Revitalize downtown - make it a better place for families 12/1/2020 2:11 PM

109 Establish a solar micro-grid 12/1/2020 2:09 PM

110 Deal with current event issues first 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

111 Protect the hillsides 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

112 Town Budget 12/1/2020 2:00 PM

Page 32



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

14 / 18

113 Land Use Planning, CONGESTION!!!! 12/1/2020 1:58 PM

114 Safety - Fire, Pedestrians, Bikes, Lighting 12/1/2020 1:57 PM

115 Pedestrian friendly 12/1/2020 1:54 PM

116 Fire 12/1/2020 1:46 PM

117 Economic Vitality 12/1/2020 1:44 PM

118 Fix the $#@ town planning process. Building & rennovating in LG is a ridiculously horrid
process. HAving built in other areas of the county I can say w/great experience LG permit
process is terrible and uninformed. It makes more problems than it solves

12/1/2020 1:44 PM

119 Safety 12/1/2020 1:34 PM

120 Summer Traffic 12/1/2020 1:33 PM

121 Fix the home robberies and vandalism 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

122 Reduce traffic from North 40 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

123 Stop blm terrorist from entering hwy17... 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

124 Bike lanes or shoulder on Shannon-Kennedy etc. 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

125 eliminate knee jerk response to traffic management 12/1/2020 1:19 PM

126 Traffic 12/1/2020 1:14 PM

127 Defy Santa Clara County and Return Businesses to Normal 12/1/2020 1:08 PM

128 Fire protection. 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

129 Fire protection 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

130 Traffic downtown in summer 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

131 homeless 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

132 A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

133 Safety and security 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

134 Solve beach traffic problem 12/1/2020 12:57 PM

135 Make more parking so that visitors find it easy to visit 12/1/2020 12:54 PM

136 Fast public transport to SFO, San Francisco and Santa Cruz 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

137 Community Vitality 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

138 Ditch adding bicycle lanes on Winchester that are barely used 12/1/2020 12:48 PM

139 Stop shutting down and ruining lives 12/1/2020 12:42 PM

140 Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Project 12/1/2020 12:27 PM

141 The other component of driving residential demand is great schools - continuing to over-invest
in our schools has to be a top priority.

12/1/2020 11:37 AM

142 Improved street lighting and walkability 12/1/2020 11:37 AM

143 Lark Ave traffic calming 12/1/2020 11:10 AM

Page 33



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

15 / 18

# THIRD CHOICE DATE

1 Street and sidewalk lighting always perfect 1/4/2021 2:25 PM

2 economic vitality 1/4/2021 11:43 AM

3 Economic - rent control for business 1/4/2021 9:40 AM

4 Emergency Preparedness 1/3/2021 7:24 AM

5 Increase the speed for new residential building approvals! 1/2/2021 6:01 PM

6 Economic Vitality 1/2/2021 4:10 PM

7 Help small businesses recover 1/2/2021 3:24 PM

8 Safety 1/2/2021 2:59 PM

9 More community events - music, ... 1/2/2021 2:51 PM

10 Economic Vitality 1/2/2021 2:36 PM

11 Work on parking plan 1/2/2021 2:11 PM

12 Parking 1/2/2021 1:57 PM

13 Public area maintenence-- Less is more. e.g. Better landscaping is cheaper/ more important
than new LED light displays.

12/26/2020 7:51 PM

14 parking 12/26/2020 2:08 PM

15 Enforce rude people to stop at crosswalks. Very surprised more people are not hit. 12/24/2020 10:07 AM

16 Limit growth of high density housing. Make the remaining North 40 land choices a positive
reflection on the town., open space, park, buildings that reflect the architecture of LG not the
urban sprawl of Silicon Valley. The current North 40 project is cheap looking, and looks like it
belongs on El Camino Real in Sunnyvale or Mountain View. It is embarrassment to the
planning of of our town. Housing a few families is not worth the scar this creates on our
beautiful town.

12/19/2020 8:55 AM

17 Pickleball 12/17/2020 5:46 PM

18 cut through traffic 12/17/2020 5:37 PM

19 Eco friendly town 12/17/2020 1:05 PM

20 Er preparedness 12/17/2020 11:15 AM

21 Make downtown more vibrant. Get a music venue 12/16/2020 11:51 AM

22 Encampments 12/16/2020 10:01 AM

23 Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 12/12/2020 7:35 AM

24 Traffic 12/11/2020 6:38 PM

25 Economic Development 12/10/2020 5:20 PM

26 Focus of the feel of downtown, not the parking - or build one huge parking structure (3 levels
down/ 3 levels up) if needed

12/7/2020 10:36 PM

27 infrastructure safety such as gas and power lines 12/6/2020 9:44 PM

28 Fire Notification and Evacuation Procedures 12/5/2020 8:10 PM

29 Better recycling programs -- donate unsold food from restaurants to food pantries, etc 12/5/2020 12:23 PM

30 Preservation of green space 12/5/2020 11:41 AM

31 Parking -ameliorate some issues or enforce posted limits in adjacent neighborhood streets.
Cars are parked for a week- no oversight

12/5/2020 11:01 AM

32 Encourage small electrical vehicles instead of SUVs. Free parking, free park use, etc. 12/4/2020 9:31 PM

33 Help businesses 12/4/2020 9:00 PM

34 Keep LG charming!! Revitalize downtown! But no more bike lanes in town 12/4/2020 6:29 PM

Page 34



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

16 / 18

35 Summer traffic 12/4/2020 2:11 PM

36 Preserving character / style of community 12/4/2020 1:11 PM

37 stop allowing businesses such as tree trimming to use our city streets as a parking lot for their
fleets of trucks!

12/4/2020 12:02 PM

38 Traffic relief 12/4/2020 12:01 PM

39 STOP MAKING LANES ON ROADS SKINNIER!!!!! 12/4/2020 10:09 AM

40 reduce traffic congestion 12/4/2020 10:07 AM

41 Be more business friendly...less bureaucracy!!! 12/4/2020 6:59 AM

42 We saw people running for town council to get their votes. They have gone into hiding. It’s time
to step up or step down. Make a difference. Bring energy back to downtown. If new council
prohibits downtown growth the community is going to be very upset. New council is against
growth which will divide our community. The north 40 isn’t the answer, bringing life back to
downtown is how this community will grow together

12/4/2020 6:24 AM

43 Traffic 12/4/2020 6:21 AM

44 Help downtown business and make it easier to start new business's in town 12/4/2020 6:20 AM

45 MORE TOILETS 12/4/2020 12:27 AM

46 Support business and reduce housing density 12/3/2020 10:54 PM

47 Helping maintain small feel town/local businesses 12/3/2020 7:25 PM

48 Get traffic moving through town quickly Stop the slowdowns. 12/3/2020 3:23 PM

49 Embracing diversity/equal representation 12/3/2020 11:15 AM

50 Equality 12/2/2020 8:47 PM

51 Community vitality - strong comunity connections 12/2/2020 4:13 PM

52 Attract more businesses 12/2/2020 2:33 PM

53 pension obligations 12/2/2020 2:06 PM

54 Regional transportation traffic control 12/2/2020 12:02 PM

55 Nice way to maintain status quo 12/2/2020 11:27 AM

56 Community 12/2/2020 11:09 AM

57 Traffic 12/2/2020 10:31 AM

58 Emergency Preparedness 12/2/2020 10:18 AM

59 access for disabled people 12/2/2020 10:08 AM

60 Reduce fees for work from home businesses 12/2/2020 8:56 AM

61 Education 12/2/2020 8:52 AM

62 STOP multifamily development! 12/2/2020 7:41 AM

63 Find a beach traffic solution with CalTrans to address 17 on ramp in downtown. Work with
state legislators if needed. This problem needs to end.

12/2/2020 2:33 AM

64 Modified mufflers seem to be trendy amongst high schoolers now. The noise level from these
cars racing through downtown decreases attractiveness of LG as a destination. Gas powered
leaf blowers were banned, surely we can do something to reduce illegal devices on cars -
maybe a program through the high school? These modifications are visible and easy to spot on
every car that has them.

12/1/2020 10:24 PM

65 Community gardena 12/1/2020 8:50 PM

66 Economic well-being of the town 12/1/2020 8:01 PM

67 Preserve and increase parks/open space 12/1/2020 7:59 PM

Page 35



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

17 / 18

68 Arts and culture nurturing - more public art!!! 12/1/2020 7:28 PM

69 support our town businesses 12/1/2020 6:41 PM

70 Transportation 12/1/2020 5:54 PM

71 A Community Basketball Gym 12/1/2020 5:38 PM

72 fire danger mitigation 12/1/2020 5:31 PM

73 less regulations 12/1/2020 5:12 PM

74 Emergency Preparedness 12/1/2020 4:29 PM

75 decarbonizing transportation 12/1/2020 4:23 PM

76 Covid safety 12/1/2020 4:22 PM

77 get fast track for drivethrough cars - if they don't stay, they pay 12/1/2020 4:20 PM

78 Green Energy Initiative, promote renewables, solar etc. 12/1/2020 3:59 PM

79 Freeze all new commercial construction 12/1/2020 3:53 PM

80 Streamline budgets 12/1/2020 3:23 PM

81 Teen/Youth Center 12/1/2020 3:16 PM

82 Add needs of Seniors in our community to several of the Town Priorities - ie. housing,
connection to community, etc.

12/1/2020 3:08 PM

83 Downtown parking issues. See a theme? 12/1/2020 2:56 PM

84 make better decisions on placing bike lanes that do not impact traffic patterns 12/1/2020 2:40 PM

85 Economic vitality 12/1/2020 2:36 PM

86 All employees of public services reduce racial bias incidents 12/1/2020 2:34 PM

87 Parking 12/1/2020 2:33 PM

88 Summer traffic abatement 12/1/2020 2:27 PM

89 Comprehensive plan to prevent fires 12/1/2020 2:25 PM

90 Environmental Sustainability 12/1/2020 2:18 PM

91 Minimize beach traffic 12/1/2020 2:11 PM

92 Establish a building code that meets Green Building standards including grey water and rain
water collection

12/1/2020 2:09 PM

93 Deal with current event issues first 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

94 No more housing 12/1/2020 2:08 PM

95 Safety & Cleanliness of roadways, highways, trails 12/1/2020 1:58 PM

96 Vitality - Keep the town alive and connected to one another 12/1/2020 1:57 PM

97 Economic recovery 12/1/2020 1:54 PM

98 Emergency 12/1/2020 1:46 PM

99 Schools 12/1/2020 1:34 PM

100 Small business support 12/1/2020 1:33 PM

101 Reduce traffic 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

102 With with Santa Clara county to make Vasona Park usable 12/1/2020 1:27 PM

103 Beach traffic closures are just dumb... 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

104 Fix planning department so not such a pain to deal with 12/1/2020 1:24 PM

105 eliminate the undue influence of the un-elected 12/1/2020 1:19 PM

Page 36



Strategic Priorities SurveyMonkey

18 / 18

106 Traffic 12/1/2020 1:14 PM

107 Focus on our Economy 12/1/2020 1:08 PM

108 Transportation Demand Management. 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

109 traffic congestion 12/1/2020 1:06 PM

110 Traffic throughout rest of town 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

111 garbage and graffite 12/1/2020 1:04 PM

112 A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

113 Livability-policies to promote peaceful enjoyment and encourage a diverse community 12/1/2020 12:59 PM

114 Focus on resident quality of life 12/1/2020 12:57 PM

115 Emergecy preparedness including fire 12/1/2020 12:54 PM

116 Affordable housing for first time buyers 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

117 Fire Protection 12/1/2020 12:49 PM

118 Ditch attempt to remove lanes on SCruz Ave & Making it one-way. 12/1/2020 12:48 PM

119 Indoor dining 12/1/2020 12:42 PM

120 Downtown Projects 12/1/2020 12:27 PM

121 Small business vitality and retention 12/1/2020 11:10 AM

Page 37



Survey Question 3 - Provide your top choices for new Town Strategic Priorities. 
Sorted into Categories (Responses not altered) 

 

Alternative Transportation Methods/Transportation Management  

• more bike lanes, sidewalks, and traffic management 
• When considering transportation and traffic issues please consider drivers at a higher 

level than bicyclists as drivers are paying for the roads through DMV and we follow the 
laws. 

• crosswalks & stop signs added and upgraded 
• Build a bridge or tunnel to increase the flow of pedestrians and bikers from Safeway side 

of town to downtown. The bridge should be between Double D's and Flights over to the 
parking area toward the Tesla charging lot behind Starbucks. The lights take WAY too 
long at HWY 9 and University due to Caltrans control. The traffic is horrific on University 
from Vasona toward downtown since the turning lanes have been redone. 

• Adopt a long-term view on future of transportation - E.g. underground light rail 
extension, electrification, accommodations for self driving vehicles, elimination of above 
ground parking, establishing pedestrian-only streets 

• Make LG more walkable; establish vehicle-free zones and roads 
• Transportation management 
• Transportation 
• get flashing cross walks downtown like other towns do. it is extremely dangerous and 

you can't see people in the crosswalks in the rain. someone is going to lose their life to a 
driver who just can't see the person at night. 

• Transportation 
• Pedestrian zone in the city center 
• Transportation Improvements 
• Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 
• Bike paths/ lanes/ trails 
• NO MORE SIGNS AND BIKE LANES 
• Expand parks and trails and biking 
• Stop closing traffic lanes. 
• Walkability 
• Transportation Demand (same) 
• Hide portion of highway 17 that goes through town in the tunnel 
• The green bike lanes have done more harm than good by removing normal traffic lanes, 

removing safe turn lanes, and likely will contribute to bike/car collisions because 
bicyclists tend to usually disobey the rules, e.g. wrong side of road, run stop signs, no 
turn signals. 

• Los Gatos Blvd light rail 

Page 38



• Pedestrian friendly 
• Bike lanes or shoulder on Shannon-Kennedy etc. 
• Fast public transport to SFO, San Francisco and Santa Cruz 
• Ditch adding bicycle lanes on Winchester that are barely used 
• Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Project 
• Improved street lighting and walkability 
• STOP MAKING LANES ON ROADS SKINNIER!!!!! 
• Transportation 
• make better decisions on placing bike lanes that do not impact traffic patterns 
• Transportation Demand Management. 
• Ditch attempt to remove lanes on SCruz Ave & Making it one-way. 
• low income transportation 
• enhance walkability 
• Make crosswalks more visable to see pedestrians 
• Town landscaping, medians, perfectly maintained 
• Street and sidewalk lighting always perfect 

Arts  

• Arts 
• Arts and culture nurturing - more public art!!! 

Community Vitality 

• Community Vitality 
• Preserving character / style of community 
• We are all in this together – Communication 
• Community vitality - strong comunity connections 
• Community 
• A Community Basketball Gym 
• A Community Center 
• garbage and graffite 
• Clean our streets and entry way to our town 
• Focus on resident quality of life 
• Support community programs such as Rec department 
• Community vitality 
• More community events - music, ... 

Economic Vitality/Business Support 

• Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 
• Down down life 

Page 39



• Continue the outdoor dining/ entertainment options even after COVID 
• Bring life to downtown 
• Economic recovery and small business support 
• Get rid of the parklets. What an eyesore. Horrible. 
• make it easier for businesses to do business in LG 
• Economic Vitality 
• Help local restaurants and business most impacted by shutdown 
• Support small business, not chains; climate change policy 
• Set commercial rent limits or offer landlords tax incentives to reduce rents to reduce 

vacancies 
• drawing interesting and non-chain stores to the downtown core 
• CoVid Recovery 
• Re-vitalize downtown including replacement of the ugly concrete barriers on Santa Cruz 

Ave 
• Post Covid economic recovery 
• Economic Vitality (same) 
• Attract more businesses/restaurants/stores not only high end 
• Make permanent the use of street front parking for restaurants. It added SO much to 

the energy and vitality of the downtown! 
• Focus less on downtown 
• Build Back Better as we get COVID-19 under control 
• Economic Vitality 
• Economics - How to attract and keep businesses alive and well in town. 
• Landlord/Business Rental/Small Business rent control (we are losing xlnt businesss to 

other towns because our rents are too high) 
• Making parklets permanent/ close santa cruz ave 
• Economic Vitality 
• keeping downtown alive 
• Help support local bussiness's its very important to the towns continued growth 
• Economic Vitality 
• This may be under economic vitality, but having an active and thriving pedestrian 

friendly downtown will be the single greatest asset to bring residents and visitors. 
• Streamline business approvals 
• Help downtown businesses. Fill vacancies but no more massage parlors! or nail salons 
• Economic vitality 
• retain small town atmosphere: locally owned businesses 
• Economic viability - encouraging business development 
• Tourism 
• Economic vitality 

Page 40



• Address "urban blight" issues of poorly maintained vacant/abandoned commercial 
properties such as the car dealership on Los Gatos Blvd. 

• Downtown:: attract biz (check rents), people friendly, traffic/parking 
• Help LG restaurants by allowing more patio dining 
• Revitalize downtown - make it a better place for families 
• Economic Vitality 
• Stop shutting down and ruining lives 
• Closing down North Santa Cruz Ave & Creating Pedestrian Mall 
• Economic Development 
• Help businesses 
• Keep LG charming!! Revitalize downtown! But no more bike lanes in town 
• Be more business friendly...less bureaucracy!!! 
• We saw people running for town council to get their votes. They have gone into hiding. 

It’s time to step up or step down. Make a difference. Bring energy back to downtown. If 
new council prohibits downtown growth the community is going to be very upset. New 
council is against growth which will divide our community. The north 40 isn’t the 
answer, bringing life back to downtown is how this community will grow together 

• Help downtown business and make it easier to start new business's in town 
• Helping maintain small feel town/local businesses 
• Attract more businesses 
• Reduce fees for work from home businesses 
• support our town businesses 
• Economic vitality 
• Vitality - Keep the town alive and connected to one another 
• Economic recovery 
• Small business support 
• Indoor dining 
• Downtown Projects 
• Small business vitality and retention 
• Economic recovery 
• Encourage dining and shopping. Ease rules and barriers of entry 
• A plan to save businesses during pandemic 
• Economic vitality 
• vitalize n santa cruz st 
• Keep the town beautiful to attract business and people: Roads, sidewalks, bridges in 

perfect condition 
• Rooftop outdoor dining (should have approved this for Double D’s) 
• Overarching Covid strategy (small business support, vaccine distribution, etc) 
• Economic vitality 

Page 41



• Downtown economic vitality 
• Support local businesses 
• Town business vitality - outdoor venues 
• Make downtown more vibrant. Get a music venue 
• Economic Vitality 
• Help small businesses recover 
• Economic Vitality 
• Economic - rent control for business 
• economic vitality 

Emergency Preparedness 

• Emergency preparedness 
• Emergency preparedness 
• Emergency preparedness. 
• Emergency preparedness 
• Emergency preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 
• Emergency 
• Emergecy preparedness including fire 
• Emergency preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 
• emergency planning 
• Er preparedness 
• Emergency Preparedness 

Environment & Sustainability 

• Address climate change by promoting plant-based diets 
• Environmental impact 
• Climate change mitigation and adaptation 
• Energy efficiency 
• Urban Agriculture 
• Maintaining space for natural vegetation and animals 
• More green energy used 
• Address climate change by promoting fossil fuel alternatives 
• climate & enviromental support 
• Establish a solar micro-grid 

Page 42



• Protect the hillsides 
• Better recycling programs -- donate unsold food from restaurants to food pantries, etc 
• Community gardena 
• decarbonizing transportation 
• Green Energy Initiative, promote renewables, solar etc. 
• Environmental Sustainability 
• Establish a building code that meets Green Building standards including grey water and 

rain water collection 
• Climate change 
• Environmentally friendly town 
• Green initiatives 
• Eco friendly town 

Fire Prevention 

• Fire Prevention 
• Hillside home fire protection and education, increase inspections and follow up for 

property owners who do not comply with the requirements 
• Fire Protection including Emergency Planning (earthquakes, etc.) 
• Fire prevention 
• Fire mitigation 
• This town needs a dedicated emergency communications and warning system like other 

communities. SCCAlerts are not remotely sufficient if / when wildfires break out in 
downtown. It’s just a matter of time given our location, climate change and few roads 
in/out of town. 

• train homeowners in fire mitigation 
• Fire & Disaster Preparedness & Managing Forest/Vegetation 
• Fire safety 
• Fire safety 
• Fire 
• wildfire prevention and emergency preparedness 
• Fire Protection 
• Fire prevention to prevent catastrophic fires, 
• Fire protection 
• Fire Protection 
• Fire and disaster preparedness 
• Fire protection 
• train homeowners in best practices for fre preparedness 
• Fire 
• Fire protection. 

Page 43



• Fire protection 
• Fire Notification and Evacuation Procedures 
• fire danger mitigation 
• Comprehensive plan to prevent fires 
• Fire Protection 
• create fire buffer areas between the town and the mountains 
• Fire Protection 
• Fire protection and prep 
• Fire Protection 
• Safety (including Fire) 
• Fire Protection 
• Fire Protection 
• Fire Safety 
• fire abatement 
• Protect residents' property-- fire, emergency preparedness 
• Fire protection 
• Fire/emergency planning 

Fiscal Stability 

• Fiscal sustainability - managing our debt 
• Honest disclosure or pension and healthcare costs and more transparency on labor 

negotiations. 
• Economic 
• Pension reform, pensions will kill all other priorities 
• Pensions 
• Town Budget 
• pension obligations 
• Economic well-being of the town 
• Streamline budgets 
• Focus on our Economy 
• Obligations (financial) 
• Transparent and Fiscally Responsible Town Finances 

Housing/Development 

• More affordable housing 
• Housing that is less expensive to built; modular. 
• No more high density projects! Deal with beach traffic! 
• Developlment 
• NO MORE DEVELOPMENTS! 

Page 44



• Fighting state on giving back local control of housing & building in town. Use your 
community support. 

• Less restrictive on property owners rights 
• Affordable low-income housing 
• Disallow conversion of residential property to commercial 
• Affordable housing and more multi dwelling residential construction 
• land use 
• Less bureaucracy for home owners to fix up their homes 
• Fiber to the house 
• No new high density housing and associated traffic issues. The north 40 and Lark Ave is 

reprehensible. 
• Affordable housing in spaces were crowding is not an issue 
• Density 
• Smaller and more affordable housing units 
• Hillside and Neighborhood preservation 
• A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 
• Streamline and remove bloat from building and grading process 
• Affordable housing 
• Affordable Housing 
• Affordable housing 
• No more housing 
• Faster building permits ease on restrictions 
• stop allowing large corporations to develop our bedroom community!!! 
• Ease up on zoning including HR density 
• More housing 
• Neighborhood Vitality (different than community) 
• Affordable Housing - The Missing Middle 
• Land use 
• low income housing 
• Vacant commercial property that was converted from residential must revert to 

residential 
• Stop with projects that bring more traffic to town such as north 40. That land could have 

been used for parks, houses, nature preserve, etc. 
• Affordable housing 
• Underground electric wires and cables 
• Freeze all new housing construction 
• better focus on fringe area residential issues 
• Manage land use and planning to stay within our available infrastructure not 

overwhelming it 

Page 45



• Land Use Planning, CONGESTION!!!! 
• Fix the $#@ town planning process. Building & rennovating in LG is a ridiculously horrid 

process. HAving built in other areas of the county I can say w/great experience LG 
permit process is terrible and uninformed. It makes more problems than it solves 

• Support business and reduce housing density 
• STOP multifamily development! 
• Freeze all new commercial construction 
• No more housing 
• Fix planning department so not such a pain to deal with 
• Affordable housing for first time buyers 
• land use 
• Streamline the Planning process for fire-safe building applications 
• Streamline the Permitting process for fire-safe building applications 
• Ease of Planning 
• Limit growth of high density housing. Make the remaining North 40 land choices a 

positive reflection on the town., open space, park, buildings that reflect the architecture 
of LG not the urban sprawl of Silicon Valley. The current North 40 project is cheap 
looking, and looks like it belongs on El Camino Real in Sunnyvale or Mountain View. It is 
embarrassment to the planning of of our town. Housing a few families is not worth the 
scar this creates on our beautiful town. 

• Increase the speed for new residential building approvals! 

Human Services/Homeless 

• Among current priorities consider strategic plan for senior issues 
• Senior Citizen Accommodations & Services 
• Support for Mental Health Services 
• Homeless 
• Seniors of our community need a center & activities like Saratoga/Campbell/Camden 

not combined with homeless 
• Homeless encampments - address growing problems before it’s so bad it can’t be solved 

as in neighboring communities 
• Caring for/serving senior residents 
• Homeless 
• A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 
• Teen/Youth Center 
• Add needs of Seniors in our community to several of the Town Priorities - ie. housing, 

connection to community, etc. 
• A nice, 1-floor senior homes complex (like Rinconada Hills)! 
• Homeless 

Page 46



• Support senior services 
• Encampments 

Inclusivity/Racial Justice  

• Racial, socio-economic diversity 
• Diversity 
• Racial equity and addressing issues with policing 
• Inclusive Community 
• diversity and inclusivity 
• Implement a transparent, community-engaged review of the police use-of-force policy 

and bring transparency to police disciplinary issues. (e.g. Obama Foundation "Mayors 
Pledge") 

• outside/Independent oversight of police department 
• drawing younger and more diverse famlies to area 
• Better efforts to welcome new people who move into L.G. 
• Racial and social justice 
• Embracing diversity/equal representation 
• Equality 
• access for disabled people 
• All employees of public services reduce racial bias incidents 
• Livability-policies to promote peaceful enjoyment and encourage a diverse community 

Miscellaneous 

• More toilets 
• Schools 
• What are they??? 
• Deal with current event issues first 
• Upgrade town services. Specifically police, code enforcement and parks services. Major 

overhall required. 
• Defy Santa Clara County and Return Kids to School - Follow the Science 
• Regulation reduction; for each new regulation, terminate 2. 
• Stop the bureaucracy- new town council members should be held accountable 
• more toilets 
• You assume that we know what they are! 
• I agree with the rest of your list 
• Veterans memorial is starting to look shabby. Has anyone noticed the flame is peeling 

away on the inside in big strips? And the huge temporary banner for Covid first 
responders that seems to be a permanent fixture? Who is overseeing this corner of 
town property that was once a lovely park? 

Page 47



• Review school zones so all LG residents can attend schools within Los Gatos 
• Deal with current event issues first 
• Defy Santa Clara County and Return Businesses to Normal 
• The other component of driving residential demand is great schools - continuing to 

over-invest in our schools has to be a top priority. 
• MORE TOILETS 
• Nice way to maintain status quo 
• Education 
• Modified mufflers seem to be trendy amongst high schoolers now. The noise level from 

these cars racing through downtown decreases attractiveness of LG as a destination. 
Gas powered leaf blowers were banned, surely we can do something to reduce illegal 
devices on cars - maybe a program through the high school? These modifications are 
visible and easy to spot on every car that has them. 

• less regulations 
• Deal with current event issues first 
• Schools 
• eliminate the undue influence of the un-elected 
• Identify what is most critical to make effective needed changes 
• Reduce taxes for residents 

Parking 

• Parking for employees & customers 
• Parking 
• Parking solutions 
• Ditch building a parking structure dwtn 
• Build parking structures at the end of the town by chase bank 
• Parking 
• Parking 
• parking lots 
• Make more parking so that visitors find it easy to visit 
• Focus of the feel of downtown, not the parking - or build one huge parking structure (3 

levels down/ 3 levels up) if needed 
• Parking -ameliorate some issues or enforce posted limits in adjacent neighborhood 

streets. Cars are parked for a week- no oversight 
• Encourage small electrical vehicles instead of SUVs. Free parking, free park use, etc. 
• stop allowing businesses such as tree trimming to use our city streets as a parking lot for 

their fleets of trucks! 
• Downtown parking issues. See a theme? 
• Parking 

Page 48



• parking - you should turn the flat lot at tate and main to an underground parking, with 2 
levels above ground. 

• Traffic/Parking 
• Parking 
• Parking 
• Parking 
• Work on parking plan 

Parks 

• A dedicated Pickleball Facility 
• Dog Park 
• Skateboard Park 
• Preserve and increase parks/open space 
• retain green & open space 
• Preservation of green space 
• Open space 
• With with Santa Clara county to make Vasona Park usable 
• Trails and park connections 
• Pickleball  
• Public area maintenence-- Less is more. e.g. Better landscaping is cheaper/ more 

important than new LED light displays. 

Public Safety 

• Safe roads for school 
• Public safety unaddressed issues for glenridge area 
• Safety & Security, enhanced police protection plans, resources, and community 

communication for protests or riots and associated crimes 
• Covid safety- enforce mask mandate 
• Enforce existing ordinances 
• Public safety 
• improve pedestrian and bicycle safety 
• Covid safety 
• Health and safety 
• Safety - Fire, Pedestrians, Bikes, Lighting 
• Safety 
• Fix the home robberies and vandalism 
• Stop blm terrorist from entering hwy17... 
• Safety and security 
• infrastructure safety such as gas and power lines 

Page 49



• Covid safety 
• Safety & Cleanliness of roadways, highways, trails 
• Crime prevention 
• Safety, how do emergency vehicles get through town with so much uncontrolled grid 

lock 
• Enforce rude people to stop at crosswalks. Very surprised more people are not hit. 
• Safety 

Traffic 

• Resolve Hiway 17 gridlock thru neighborhoods! Dangerous! Can’t get I out/in or move 
for 8 hrsespecially 1st-Tait & 2nd is Bayviee 

• Traffic reduction 
• Beach traffic 
• downtown summer gridlock traffic! 
• dealing with summer traffic and shutting down North Santa Cruz on weekends 
• Summer Beach Traffic/Additional LaneLark-Hwy9 
• Widen highway 17 and prevent traffic backup into town 
• Traffic 
• Traffic 
• Summer Traffic should be addressed 
• Traffic 
• control summer cut thru traffic it shuts down our town 
• Summer beach traffic clogging local streets on weekends 
• Summer traffic abatement 
• Address Traffic flow and weekend overflow 
• Eliminate in-town beach traffic. 
• Priority on summer traffic clogging our town, I see it's sandwiched in with cycle paths, 

pedestrian and public transport improvements, but who wants to ride their bike 
through clogged roads with cars pumping out pollution into the air and drivers putting 
cyclists lives in danger as they grow increasingly angry, we hear it downtown all the 
time, the endless angry horns. The summer traffic issue desperately needs fixing before 
any other issues can be put into place. 

• intelligent approach to traffic management 
• Traffic 
• Traffic on LG Boulevard/Lark Avenue 
• Reduce town traffic 
• Transportation/Traffic/Parking Management especially during summer 
• Beach traffic 
• Regional solutions to traffic and housing 

Page 50



• Beach traffic 
• Traffic 
• stick to a plan to control summer beach traffic thru town 
• Summer traffic 
• Summer traffic abatement 
• Summer Traffic 
• Reduce traffic from North 40 
• eliminate knee jerk response to traffic management 
• Traffic 
• Traffic downtown in summer 
• Solve beach traffic problem 
• Lark Ave traffic calming 
• Traffic 
• Summer traffic 
• Traffic relief 
• reduce traffic congestion 
• Traffic 
• Get traffic moving through town quickly Stop the slowdowns. 
• Regional transportation traffic control 
• Traffic 
• Find a beach traffic solution with CalTrans to address 17 on ramp in downtown. Work 

with state legislators if needed. This problem needs to end. 
• get fast track for drivethrough cars - if they don't stay, they pay 
• Summer traffic abatement 
• Minimize beach traffic 
• Reduce traffic 
• Beach traffic closures are just dumb... 
• Traffic 
• traffic congestion 
• Traffic throughout rest of town 
• Traffic congestion 
• Highway 17 and town beach traffic 
• Summer traffic 
• Traffic mitigation 
• cut through traffic 

 

Page 51



Capital Improvement Program 

Project Status Update 

The attached table provides a high‐level overview of the status of the Town’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP).  The intent of the document is to demonstrate the breadth of 
projects and where work has begun.  Because this is a high‐level overview, this document is not 
intended as an in‐depth budget review for each project.   

The table is separated into two sections – one‐time projects in the upper portion and ongoing 
projects in the lower portion.  One‐time projects are non‐repetitive in their nature and once 
complete, are removed from the CIP with any remaining funds returned to the GFAR for re‐
allocation by the Council in future years.  

Ongoing projects receive consistent funding over time and any fund balance is carried in the 
project for the next fiscal year.  An example is street maintenance where the need is consistent 
and ongoing.  

The table columns are explained as follows: 

Column 1:  A large number of the projects are in progress and this is noted by the blue shading 
of the project title.  Progress is defined as the Town having made a significant financial 
commitment to the project in relation to the budget for that project.   

Column 2:  The CIP Page No. in this column is a cross reference to the Town’s CIP Budget 
document to allow for ease of finding additional detail. 

Column 3:  This shows the budget allocated to the project in the current fiscal year only.  Note 
that many of the projects had expenditures in prior years as projects often span multiple years. 

Column 4 – This column identifies projects that have Town General Fund commitments through 
the GFAR.  GFAR dollars are the most flexible in terms of use. 

Column 5 – This column identifies projects that have grant funds commitments.   

Column 6 – This column identifies projects that utilize other funding such as gas tax, traffic 
impact fees, information technology replacement funds, etc. 

Column 7 – This column identifies projects that have matching fund requirements.  These are 
typically grant funded projects.   

Column 8 – This column demonstrates the current encumbrances and expenditures on the 
project as a means of demonstrating progress on the project.  Note that some amounts in this 
column will exceed the current year’s budget due to encumbrances that occurred in previous 
fiscal years that have not yet been paid.  

Page 1 of 6 ATTACHMENT 5Page 52



 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 2 of 6Page 53



FY 2020/21 ‐ 2024/25 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ‐ PROJECT STATUS (11/21/2021)

Dollar amounts are approximate.

Project 
CIP Page 
No.

FY 20/21 
Budget

GFAR Grant Other
Matching 
Funds

Expenses + 
Encumbrances

Status/ Comment

One Time Projects
Guardrail Replacement Project C‐20  $  1,050,137    $          107,278  Design

Massol Intersection Improvements C‐22  $     442,236    $          338,623  Construction

Shannon Road Repair (Stabilization 
Study)

C‐24  $  1,500,000    $            63,073  Feasibility Study

Roadside Fire Fuel Reduction C‐26  $     250,000    $          500,000  In progress. Combined funding with Vegetation 
Management project.

Parking Lot 4 Repair & 
Waterproofing

C‐28  $     250,000    $ ‐    Project contract in progress.

Downtown Parking Lots Seal coat 
& Restriping

C‐34  $        55,519    $              2,934 

Hernandez Avenue Storm Drain 
Improvements

C‐36  $ ‐      $ ‐   

Shannon Road Class I Multi‐Use 
Path

C‐38  $  1,140,200 
 

 $            20,000  Feasibility Study

Utility Undergrounding 
Improvements ‐ Rule 20A LGB

C‐42  $  6,766,000    $ ‐    Construction

Traffic Signal Modernization C‐44  $  2,789,191    $          753,088  Design & Construction

Bicknell Road Storn Drain 
Improvements

C‐46  $        64,758    $              4,500  Design  

Stormwater Master Plan C‐50  $     118,290    $            93,216  This plan will identify storm infrastructure capital 
deficiencies throughout Town.

Stormwater System ‐ Pollution 
Prevention Compliance

C‐52  $     298,578    $ ‐    Set aside for State mandates and addressing projects 
from the Stormwater Master Plan (see CIP 

Public Art Gateway C‐54  $        15,004    $            10,500  Artwork under construction.  Delivery due March 1.

Parking Program Implementation C‐56  $     198,500    $ ‐    Employee permit program under development.

Pilot School Busing C‐60  $     412,091    $ ‐    GFAR funds of $325,091 can revert to fund balance. 

ADA Transition Plan C‐62  $     110,000    $ ‐    Consultant Procurement.  Expect contract by March, 
2021.

Projects in blue cells have significant progress or are complete.

Page 3 of 6Page 54



Project 
CIP Page 
No.

FY 20/21 
Budget

GFAR Grant Other
Matching 
Funds

Expenses + 
Encumbrances

Status/ Comment

Hwy 17/9 Interchange and 
Capacity Improvements ‐ Hwy 17 
Congestion Relief Project (@ SR 9)

C‐64  $     600,000 


 $ ‐    Project preliminary design underway with VTA and 
Caltrans. 

Downtown Streetscape 
Revitalization (COVID Economic 
Recovery)

C‐66  $  1,924,062 


 $          248,158  Additional financial commitments pending.  Additional 
Council direction on 1‐19‐2021.

E. Main Street Speed Table/Raised
Crosswalk

C‐68  $     169,200    $ ‐    Consultant contract effective 2/1/21. Construction in 
summer 2022.

Local Road Safety Plan C‐70  $     100,000    $ ‐    Plan under way.  Total commitment is $80k ($72k 
grant; $8k GFAR)

Blossom Hill Road Traffic Study C‐72  $     125,000    $            48,410  Study complete.  Community meeting 1‐28‐2021. 
future capital project.

Winchester Class IV Bikeway C‐74  $     982,455    $          139,538  Design completed. Construction to start in summer 
2021.

VMT Mitigation Program C‐76  $     250,000    $ ‐    This funding will align traffic policies with VMT 
requirements and the updated General Plan.

Kennedy Sidewalk ‐ LGB to 
Englewood

C‐78  $ ‐      $ ‐    Planned for FY 2022/23

Winchester Blvd. Complete Streets 
Final Design

C‐80  $     165,826    $            85,878  $1m grant funding in 2021/22

Quito Road Bridge C‐86  $     285,087    $          235,087  Design

Highway 17 Bicycle & Pedestrian 
Bridge ‐ Design

C‐88  $  3,848,151    $          146,951  Consultant Procurement

Creek Trail & Park Pathway & 
Parking Lot Seal Coat & Striping

D‐8  $     206,115 


 $          160,953  Completed

Town Plaza Turf Repair D‐10  $        28,000    $ ‐    Spring project.

Outdoor Fitness Equipment D‐12  $        60,000    $            21,865  Project in construction.  

Vegetation Management ‐ Town‐
wide

D‐14  $     487,188    $          186,970  In progress

Open Space Trail Upgrades D‐20  $     152,000    $ ‐   

Forbes Mill Footbridge 
Improvements

D‐22  $        63,451    $              2,522  Planning for permanent lighting.  Need PG&E power at 
the bridge.

Charter Oak Trail Repair D‐24  $     440,109    $ ‐    Commitment to spend Albright funds in the Charter 
Oaks neighborhood.

Trailhead Connector Project D‐26  $     312,155    $          241,835  Design

Building Replacement at 
Corporation Yard

E‐06  $  1,002,550    $          721,387  Construction

Page 4 of 6Page 55



Project 
CIP Page 
No.

FY 20/21 
Budget

GFAR Grant Other
Matching 
Funds

Expenses + 
Encumbrances

Status/ Comment

Facility Assessment E‐08  $        80,000    $ ‐    RFP has been released.

Library Carpet Replacement E‐10  $        56,500    $            48,597  Complete.

ADA Upgrade Public Restrooms ‐ 
Adult Recreation Building

E‐14  $     250,000    $ ‐   

Town Hall ADA Restrooms and HR 
Offices

E‐16  $     450,000    $ ‐   

Plaza Level Railings ‐ Code Upgrade E‐18  $        35,604    $            33,060  Near complete.  Railings need to be painted.

Waterproofing ‐ Town‐wide E‐20  $        75,000    $ ‐    Programmed roof replacement and repairs for spring.

Sound Mitigation in Library Lobby E‐22  $        22,000    $ ‐    Library trust funds as matching.

Fire Suppression (Halon) for Server 
Rooms

E‐24  $     194,396    $            92,555  Nearly complete.  Excess funds will revert to fund 
balance.

Police Headquarters Roof Repair E‐26  $        42,552    $            40,304 

Adult Recreation Center ‐ Floor 
Repair

E‐28  $     100,000    $ ‐   

Information System Upgrade E‐34  $    114,785    $            37,759  Testing started last year. Implemantation will continue 
into next fiscal year. 

Audio/Video System Upgrade E‐36  $        42,552    $ ‐   

Town‐wide Document Imaging 
Project

E‐38  $        16,990    $            16,990 

Silicon Valley Regional 
Interoperability Project (SVRIP)

E‐42  $        62,967    $            33,598 

EOC Communication Upgrade E‐44  $        29,382    $            24,520  Remaining funds needed for ongoing EOC upgrades.

IT Disaster Recovery 
Improvements

E‐46  $     169,076    $            27,023 

Computer‐Aided Dispatch and 
Records Management System

E‐48  $     389,048    $          247,527 

Engineering Document Archiving E‐40  $        45,801    $            78,084  In progress

Downtown Parking Study A‐11  $ ‐   


 $            48,484  Encumbered funds represent Dixon contract to assist 
with project implementation (see CIP page C‐56)

Cut‐thru Traffic Mitigation A‐11  $ ‐      $            33,446 

Page 5 of 6Page 56



Project 
CIP Page 
No.

FY 20/21 
Budget

GFAR Grant Other
Matching 
Funds

Expenses + 
Encumbrances

Status/ Comment

FY 2020/21 Street Repair & 
Resurfacing  

C‐06  $  3,981,908    $          473,462 

Traffic Calming Projects C‐12  $        35,799    $            16,664 

Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk 
Maintenance 

C‐14  $     751,813    $              5,821 

Retaining Wall Repairs C‐16  $     535,320    $          170,066 

Annual Street Restriping C‐18  $     169,772    $ ‐   

Sidewalk Improvements ‐ Multiple 
Locations

C‐40  $        60,000    $ ‐   

Bicyle and Pedestrian 
Improvements

C‐48  $     265,174     $              3,350  We can close this one.

Annual Storm Drain Improvement 
Project

C‐58  $     420,300    $ ‐   

Parks Playground Fibar Project D‐06  $        49,264    $ ‐    Spring project bi‐annually.

Town Beautification E‐12  $        25,386    $            10,962 

Ongoing Projects ‐ Recurring projects with regular funding provided to ensure asset stability.

Page 6 of 6Page 57



Init 1 - Post-Covid Economic Recovery and Revival DRAFT 

ATTACHMENT 6 

Consider: Mid and Long-Term approach to save businesses and jobs in 

response to the economic effects of the pandemic. 

In order to not only survive this pandemic, but thrive on the other side, we 

must do more.  We need to start now, at the peak of the pandemic, to 

look forward and emerge stronger. 

It’s not only about our businesses--it’s about our residents and workers. 

WSJ: “The  covid-19 recession is the most unequal in modern U.S. history. 

Job losses from the pandemic overwhelmingly impacted low-wage, 

minority workers” 

1. Reallocate balance of $1.9M to small business projects across the 

whole Town and create a $5M revitalization fund 

2. Explore new funding sources via public-Init private partnerships, state 

and federal programs 

3. Stand up an Economic Revitalization Board 

4. Accelerate the recommendations of the Dixon parking report 

5. Develop a world-class configuration for N Santa Cruz 

6. Most importantly, as a Town continue to work to be “easy to do 

business with” 

A little more detail: 

1. Immediately reallocate the balance of the $1.9 million from the 

Town beautification budget to recovery for small businesses, find at 

least $3M from other projects that do not need to move as quickly 

and combine with new funding sources (2. below) creating a $5M 

revitalization fund not to be used for individual businesses but for 

business improvement projects not just in Downtown but ACROSS 

THE WHOLE TOWN. 

2. Explore new funding sources via public-private partnerships, state 

and federal programs.  These could be Town-wide programs as well 

as providing easy access to business-specific programs. 

Page 58



3. Stand up an Economic Revitalization Board (appointed on Ad Hoc 

basis by Town Council) with the best retail, financial, and 

entrepreneurial minds in Town (Chamber of Commerce plus non-

member businesses, retired executives and others).  This board could 

make recommendations of expenditures of >$100k to the Council 

and <$100k to Town Manager.  Town staff will create rules for 

qualification of business improvements and will provide normal 

oversight.  This will create transparency and encourage community 

input. 

4.  Accelerate the parking improvements of the Dixon report short of 

building a parking structure.  Provide direction to motorists to 

available parking--start with better signs while moving to electronic 

wayfinding.  As our restaurants are recovering due to the parklets, 

the removal of parking is putting additional pressure on retail that is 

already struggling.   

5. Develop a world-class streetscape and configuration for N Santa 

Cruz --a downtown retail reconfiguration of North Santa Cruz 

Avenue to allow maximum outdoor seating--that is complementary 

and compatible with retail activity.  Scope would include location 

and spacing of sidewalk, seating, awnings, streetscape and traffic 

flow.  This would start with a study of the best examples in the US, 

especially those with history and character. 

6. Most importantly, continue to work to make Los Gatos easy to do 

business with - it's not just about fees, more about speed: hand-offs 

between permitting, licensing, planning, etc., creating a culture of 

continuous improvement.  We need to measure key metrics in order 

to improve. 

Getting back to where we were isn’t enough. The Town should not only 

survive this pandemic, but thrive, going forward. 

Note:  The economic recovery items approved on 1/19/2019 are primarily 

short-term and form the foundation of this mid and long-term initiative. 

These 6 elements could be selected and implemented independently to 

some degree. 

Page 59



______________________________________________ 

Another related initiative, not proposed for 2021 (More on this later): 

Innovation Economy 

Every morning of the work week there is a brain drain from Los Gatos, in 

which our most talented residents get in their cars and board the big 

white busses and leave Town for a job up the Peninsula or in the City. Why 

not reverse this flow?  Why not cultivate high-paying jobs for our own 

residents and create new opportunities for adjacent retail and restaurant 

businesses? 

What is an Innovation Hub?  A concentration of inventive talent working 

in collaborative spaces where novel technologies (tech, biotech, 

medtech) are created and developed. A hub typically includes: 

● Facilities for entrepreneurs with the necessities for a startup 

● Offices for venture capital, other investors and professional services 

firms 

● Places for customers of innovation (often representatives of large 

companies) to work, stay, and be a part of the “innovation 

ecosystem” 

  

Page 60



Init 2 - Serving Our 60+ Community DRAFT 

Consider:  Enhanced services for our 60+ residents through an engaged 

and activated community organization (re-vamped Commission), as well 

as providing additional opportunities for 60+ to serve the greater 

community 

Characteristics of our 60+ community in Los Gatos: 

 

● Make up ⅓ of our voters--yet we haven’t very much asked them 

what they want and need 

● Include a wide range of lifestyles from still working, to tapering down 

a little, to no longer working for a paycheck 

● Many range from having virtually no free time, to lots of time; from 

being as fit as ever, to grappling with serious health issues; from 

looking for ways to volunteer, to coping with unmet needs.   

 

Needs and concerns (from >120 survey responses and several listening 

sessions): 

 

● Safety is a big concern--not only crime statistics but also wildfire 

concerns 

● Many would like to stay in Town, but many believe that they will 

have to move away, especially as they get older 

● Many prefer to drive because of the flexibility, autonomy, and 

speed, but will be faced with obstacles 

● Rather than providing shuttles which do not offer flexibility, 

autonomy, and speed, but cost money--perhaps Uber/Lift vouchers 

and instruction on their use, and addressing the obstacles from 

medical providers, would be more effective? 

 

60+ residents as a service force 

 

Our 60+ residents are not only a community that needs better services, 

but even more importantly, they are a source of skills and services to our 

entire community.   Our 60+ residents have some fantastic skills and ideas 

to share--some examples: 

 

● Intern jobs for seniors 

Page 61



● Match 60+ with young families who don’t have grandparents nearby 

or could use help 

● One-stop online notification for volunteering 

● Website, social networking, and publicity of opportunities 

● Contributing to community newspaper or news source 

● Talent, mentor, meet-up groups 

● Start with Inventory of 60+ talents 

 

Additional ways to serve our 60+ residents: 

 

● Consider transitioning to an outsourced senior services model (similar 

to Saratoga) 

● Develop cooperative agreements to access neighboring community 

resources 

● Long-term: Develop a top-class activities center for 60+ residents 

 

Page 62



 Page 1 of 4  

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ATTORNEY 

 

 MEMORANDUM 

 

 

To:  Mayor & Council  

From:   Robert Schultz, Town Attorney 

Date:  January 21, 2021 

Subject:   Ordinance and Policy Priorities for the January 26, 2021 Priority Setting  

Study Session 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The Town Attorney’s Office is continually evaluating the Municipal Code for needed updates 

and provides this Memorandum to assist the Town Council in its Priority Setting Study Session. 

The list is in order of recommended priority. However, please realize that although these 

ordinances are in recommended priority, many issues may arise during the year that can alter these 

priorities.    

 

1. Face Covering Ordinance 

 

The health and safety of the public has been the Town’s highest priority during the COVID-

19 pandemic. In response to the crisis, the Town has followed all guidance, requirements, 

and protocols issued by the State of California and County of Santa Clara through their 

public health orders. A significant part of the Town’s response has been to educate and 

encourage individuals and employees of local businesses to adhere to the requirement to use 

face coverings outside of the home when it is not possible to maintain a safe physical 

distance to prevent the spread of the COVID-19 virus. Examples include frequent 

information on this topic in the Town’s news bulletins, on the Town’s web site and on social 

media, as well as authorizing additional signage to be posted in multiple locations 

throughout the community.  

 

Notwithstanding these education and communication efforts, the Town continues to receive 

complaints that some members of the public are not wearing face coverings when required 

by the public health order. Having a civil enforcement tool available whereby fines could be 

assessed using the provisions of Administrative Fines of the Los Gatos Town Municipal 

Code should encourage compliance with wearing face coverings in accordance with the 

Santa Clara County Health Orders and the California Department of Public Health Order. 

 

2. Public Art Ordinance  

 

Many municipalities in California have adopted ordinances requiring private sector 

development projects contribute to local art installations and programs. In 2016, the Town 

Council approved the Arts and Culture Commission’s strategic plan, which identified public 

art, funding, and community engagement as its three major goals.  In 2018, the Town   Council  

  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 7 

Page 63



Page 2 of 4 

 

directed staff to obtain further information regarding Public Art Ordinances and in response, 

hired Keyser Marston Associates to prepare an analysis on Private Sector Arts Contribution 

Programs. In 2019 after presenting the findings in the Keyser Marston report, the Town 

Council direct the preparation of a Public Art Ordinance. The draft ordinance has been 

prepared and is ready to be presented to Town Council.  

 

3. Amendments to Tree Protection Ordinance 

 

The Town’s Tree Protection Ordinance was adopted in 2015. During amendments to our code 

related to fire protection, issues were raised regarding fines and penalties associated with 

illegal trimming and removal of trees. Code amendments are necessary to strengthening code 

enforcement and increase civil penalties for illegal tree removal or damage. 

 

4. Gender Neutralization of the Town Code 

 

As the Town works to create more inclusive environments for both staff and citizens, Gender 

Neutralization of the Code is an important milestone in the process, and one that has become 

a priority for many municipalities.  The older language within our Code that contains 

increasingly obsolete gender-specific terms such as “she”, “he”,  “chairman”, “policeman” 

and other gender-specific terminology that is not considered inclusive in today’s non-gender 

specific world. 

 

5. Amendments to Solid Waste Ordinance  

 

The State of California adopted Senate Bill 1383. This bill requires organic waste in California 

landfills to be reduced 50 percent from 2014 levels by 2020 and 75 percent by 2025. It also 

requires that by 2025 at least 20 percent of edible food currently sent to landfills be recovered 

for human consumption. The bill requires the Town to adopt enforceable ordinances to ensure 

that all residential and commercial generators are compliant.  

 

6. Campaign Financing and Reporting Ordinance  

  

The State of California adopted Assembly Bill (AB) 571. This bill recognizes that not all 

California cities and counties have set contribution limits for their elected candidates. This 

legislation applies contribution limits, set originally for State candidates, to city and county 

candidates in jurisdictions that have not set their own limits. The State legislation does not 

preclude the Town from setting its own limits (higher or lower) now or in the future. It simply 

applies the State candidate limits to cities and counties that have no adopted campaign 

contribution limits. The Council needs to decide whether to do nothing and have the State 

campaign limits apply to Town Council or return with an ordinance or resolution to set 

different campaign contribution limits from the States for Town races. 

 

7. Commercial Cannabis Operations and Facilities Ordinance  

 

Los Gatos Town Code currently prohibits all medical marijuana operations and distribution 

facilities throughout the Town. With recent State law changes, cities and counties across 

California are exploring these new regulations and the fiscal tax impact of allowing 

Commercial Cannabis Operations and facilities. The tax rates adopted by the voters in other  

Page 64



Page 3 of 4 

 

jurisdictions range from 2.5% to 10% and preliminary estimates for the Town is between 

several hundred thousand dollars to $1.5 million annually additional revenue. The analysis 

and review of these issues is consistent with council priority of Prudent Financial 

Management.  

 

8. Public Nuisance /Blight/Administrative Abatement Hearing Ordinance  

 

The Town does not have a comprehensive Public Nuisance Ordinance related to the 

identification, definition, and enforcement of nuisances. Such an Ordinance would make 

identification of violations easier for residents and businesses to understand and thereby 

comply with, as well as to assist the Town in enforcing the Code and providing due process.  

The Nuisance Ordinance would provide a just, equitable, and practicable method for 

preventing, discouraging, and/or abating certain conditions which endanger the life, limb, 

health, property, safety, or welfare of the general public.  Currently, the Administrative 

Abatement of Violations section of our Town Code is antiquated and needs to be updated to 

allow for the enforcement of Code violations through administrative hearings effectively 

applied and administered in a fair, expedient, and cost-efficient manner. 

 

9. Mills Act Ordinance  

 

The Mills Act grants local governments the authority to establish, administer, and implement 

Mills Act Historic Preservation Tax Relief Programs (Mills Act programs). Cities and 

counties with Mills Act programs can enter into contracts with owners of qualified historic 

properties who actively participate in the preservation, restoration, and maintenance of their 

historic properties while potentially receiving property tax relief. Property owners must use 

any tax savings to extend the life of the structure(s) and protect the historic and aesthetic value 

of the property. 

 

The potential drafting of a Mills Act Ordinance was considered by the Town Council in 

September 2019. Due to FPPC conflict of interest laws, only three Council members 

participated in the hearing. At the hearing, a Motion passed 2-1 to continue this item to a 

future Council meeting and directed staff to start conversations with partner agencies and 

provide examples of Mills Act Ordinances from surrounding jurisdictions.  

      

10. Amendments to Sign Ordinance 

 

The Town’s Sign Ordinance was adopted in 1976 and was last updated and amended in 1992. 

Based upon issues that have arisen during elections, my office conducted research regarding 

political sign and has determined based the US Supreme Court’s decision in Reed v Town of 

Gilbert, 576 U.S. 155 (2015), that our current Sign Code appears to have aspects and sections 

that are no longer constitutional.   

 

11. Shared Mobility Device Ordinance 

 

The Town does not have a Shared Mobility Device Ordinance. Shared mobility devices, such 

as electric scooters (e.g., Bird, Lime-S) and bikes (e.g. LimeBike, JUMP, Mobike, Spin), have 

surged locally and in cities throughout the United States. These mobility devices can be rented 

by the public via a smartphone application that unlocks the motorized devices from any 

Page 65



Page 4 of 4 

 

location and lets the user park it when the rider arrives at their chosen destination. These 

mobility devices are highly visible, drawing considerable attention and controversy when they 

arrive in any area. They have raised significant community concerns about safety and 

enforcement, including concerns about users riding on the sidewalk, doubling up on scooters, 

users failing to observe traffic controls in violation of the California Vehicle Code and other 

unsafe or uncivil rider behaviors. The devices have also posed new challenges in managing 

the safe public use of the street and sidewalks. The Town should adopt an ordinance regulating 

shared mobility service in the Town that would include permitting requirements and an 

operational framework. 

 

12. Noise Ordinance 

 

The Town’s Noise Ordinance was adopted in 1991.  With the changes to the Town’s 

Entertainment Policy, the Town needs to analyze and determine whether the noise levels set 

forth in the Noise Ordinance adequately protect the residents of Los Gatos from unnecessary, 

excessive, and disturbing noise and vibration.  

 

13. Wireless Facilities Ordinance  

 

The Town’s current Wireless Facilities Ordinance was adopted in 2003 to conform to the 1996 

Telecommunications Act and is now outdated based on the ongoing changes to State and 

Federal legislation and leaves the Town unprepared for the scale of expansion that is on the 

horizon.  Our current Ordinance only deals with the collocation of wireless facilities on 

existing utility poles.  Various wireless facility companies are now proposing installations in 

the public right of way.  Such installations could be on existing Town-owned structures, such 

as streetlight poles, or could involve the companies putting in their own new poles.  The Town 

needs to update its wireless telecommunications ordinance to address the current status of 

Federal and State law as well as to reflect best practices in siting and design standards to 

preserve the aesthetics of the Town but to also facilitate providing competitive, varied, and 

high-quality wireless communications service infrastructure.  

 

14. Claims/Settlement Authority Ordinance  

 

The Town’s current Claims Ordinance has not been updated since 2003.  With the passage of 

time, certain provisions have become outdated and other provisions have not historically been 

followed.  This proposed update to the Ordinance would conform to current practice and 

update current settlement limits to allow for more expeditious settlement of claims and 

disposition of workers compensation claims. 

  

       RWS 

Page 66



 

   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 01/26/2021 

ITEM NO: 1 

DESK ITEM 

    

 

DATE:   January 26, 2021 

TO: Mayor and Town Council 

FROM: Laurel Prevetti, Town Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve the Following Strategic Priorities Actions:  
A. Affirm the Town Goals of Community Character, Good Governance, Fiscal 

Stability, Civic Enrichment, Public Safety, and Quality Public Infrastructure  
B. Affirm and/or Refine Ongoing Strategic Priorities for 2021-2023  
C. For any new Strategic Priority, identify an existing Priority that should be 

removed or de-emphasized; and  
D. Identify Ordinance Priorities 

Remarks: 
 
Attachment 8 contains public comment received between 11:01 a.m. January 22, 2021 and 
11:00 a.m. January 26, 2021.   
 
In response to an inquiry from a Council Member, staff is providing the following update on the 
Town’s wildfire plan.  On December 1, 2020, the Town Council accepted the Ad Hoc Wildfire 
Committee Report with its many action items and directed staff to return in one year with an 
action item progress update.  To date, the Council has not taken action on specific items in the 
Report; however, it should be noted that previously authorized wildfire mitigation continues in 
Town.  These include the 11-mile Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) roadway vegetation 
management project, Town Open Space ecological assessment and fuel reduction project, and 
funding for rehabilitation of portions of Shannon Road.   
 
Another Council Member inquired about the staff work involved with new Committees when 
the participants volunteer to “do the work.”  All Town Committees, including short term Ad Hoc 
Committees, require staff time to ensure that the meetings of the Committee satisfy State laws 
and Town Policies by providing administrative support; evaluate the work of the Committee for 
consistency with Town Codes, policies, Budget, and/or other documents; provide overall 
management oversight; and perform other duties as needed.   
 
In addition, the following item was previously requested to be included in the Strategic 
Priorities discussion, and staff wanted to remind the Council of the request: 
 

 Prepare Consulting Arborist Report Guidelines. 

 

Page 67



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: Approve Strategic Priorities Actions  
DATE:  January 26, 2021 
 
Attachments Previously Received with the Staff Report: 
1. 2020-2022 Strategic Priorities  
2. Work Plans  
3. Draft 2021-2023 Strategic Priorities  
4. Community Survey Results  
5. CIP Matrix  
6. Council Member Hudes’ Suggestions  
7. Ordinance List 
 
Attachments Received with this Desk Item: 

8. Public Comment received between 11:01 a.m. January 22, 2021 and 11:00 a.m. January 26, 
2021. 

Page 68



From: Rob Stump
To: Arn Andrews
Subject: Desk Item for Strategic Priorities meeting
Date: Tuesday, January 26, 2021 10:03:37 AM
Attachments: Ad Hoc Wildfire Committee Recommendations 210112.pdf

Arn, 

Please include the attached document as a Desk Item for this evening's Strategic Priorities meeting.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Rob Stump

ATTACHMENT 8Page 69



Los Gatos Ad Hoc Wildfire Committee Report Briefing 
January 12, 2021 

 
Five Key Areas and 2021 Implementation Recommendations 

 
1. Five Key Areas with recommended action items and designated priorities: 

Priority 1 – within 2 years; or Priority 2 – within 3-5 years.   
a. Emergency Communication 
b. Emergency Evacuation 
c. Roadside Fuel Reduction  
d. Open Space and Residential Land Management 
e. Emergency Partnerships 

 
2. 2021 Implementation 

a. Wildland Fire Specialist:  Fund/hire a Wildland Fire Specialist whose full-
time job is to focus on Wildfire Preparation and Prevention for our 
community.  

b. Emergency Communication: serious consideration should be given to the 
installation of a siren warning system across the Los Gatos hillside.  

c. Emergency Evacuation: assess and address evacuation feeder routes 
leading out of the very high fire hazard severity zone.     

d. Roadside Fuel Reduction: develop a plan, including funding to ensure that 
31 miles of LG public roadways in the VHFHSZ are maintained every 6 years.     

e. Emergency Partnerships: exert our leadership and energy to spur action 
and/or joint action with communities that are contiguous to LG beginning 
with Monte Sereno and Saratoga.  

 

Page 70



From: Amy Nishide  
Sent: Monday, January 25, 2021 11:01 PM 
To: Council <Council@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: for 1-26-21 town council meeting 

(Proposal and some demographic data of towns with equity committees attached below.) 

Council members and support staff, thank you for your efforts over the past 6-8 months to help make 
Los Gatos a more inclusive community.  I am here to propose that the Los Gatos town council approve a 
proposal to form a new Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee. 

I think that the National events of the past year, beginning with the murders of George Floyd, Ahmaud 
Arbery, Breonna Taylor, and many others, to the insurrection at the U.S. Capital and the rise of white 
supremacists, to the incidents here in Los Gatos like the alleged Anti-Asian slurs and physical attack on a 
young man, and the threatening letter delivered to 3 businesses that overtly support Black Lives, 
demand action on our part.   It’s imperative that Los Gatos continues its efforts towards improving our 
community and protecting the human rights and dignity of all persons.  

I propose that we formalize our commitment and make it official by forming a town council advisory 
committee, or task force, dedicated towards this mission.  By doing so, we’d bring the mission to the 
forefront and truly prioritize it.  The Diversity, Equity and Inclusion committee would be made up of a 
group of diverse citizens and dedicated topromoting an atmosphere welcoming of diversity, equity, and 
inclusion in Los Gatos such that all residents and visitors feel welcomed and safe.  Secondly the 
committee would promote Equity on the basis of race, ethnicity, religion, gender orientation, marital 
status,, sexual orientation, or economic status.  The precise wording of the mission statement and goals 
would be architected by the committee.   

The commission would be responsible for creating, tracking, and monitoring a database cataloging 
discrimination or hate incidents.  This would provide us with a measureable metric with which to track 
our progress.  It would make recommendations to the town council for programs to promote Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion in all aspects of town government, including but not limited to, housing, 
affordability, commerce, transportation, safety, and policing.  The committee would review existing 
town policy with a racial justice lens, and sponsor and host events to bring people together while 
celebrating diversity, . 

Many nearby cities or towns already have such committees, including but not limited to, Palo Alto, 
Mountain View, South San Francisco, Lafayette, Livermore, and even tiny Piedmont.  If they can do it so 
can we. 

I urge you to formally approve the formation of such a committee, and provide it with the necessary 
resources. 

Thank you for your time. 

 

Page 71

mailto:Council@losgatosca.gov


 
Proposal for  

 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee (Commission/Task Force)  
 
Mission  To promote an atmosphere welcoming of diversity, equity, and inclusion 
in Los Gatos such that all residents and visitors feel welcomed and safe.  To promote 
Equity on the basis of race, ethnicity, religion, gender orientation, marital status,, 
sexual orientation, and economic status.  
 
Comprised of: 
 
Voting members: 
Town council member: 1 
Citizens 6-7, that represent the racial/religious/sexual orientation/age diversity 
(E.g a youth member 16-23 years) of Los Gatos.  ,  
  
Non voting participants: town manager, town attorney, LGMS  Police Department 
representative, LGUSD representative, LGSUHSD representative 
 
Goal:  To ensure Los Gatos is a town that actively improves upon and addresses 
concerns about racial equity and inclusivity. 
 
Responsibilities 
 
Make recommendations to the town council for programs to promote Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion in all aspects of town government, including but not limited to, 
housing, affordability, commerce, transportation, safety, and policing. 
 
Set up and monitor a mechanism for people to report incidents of discrimination, 
hate speech, etc. based on a person’s identity, including race, religion, ethnicity, 
sexual orientation/gender identity, and socio-economic class.  All credible reports 
will be accepted and when a crime may have been committed, it will be turned over 
to Los Gatos-Monte Sereno Police Department with complainants’ permission. 
Provide access to relevant Police department data (e.g. arrest rates, citations, etc.). 
Track data and use them as a way to measure improvement in Equity and Inclusion 
goals. 
 
Review all town codes with an Equity lens and make recommendations for change 
as needed. 
 
Work with the Chamber of Commerce to reach out to BIPOC-owned businesses and 
promote Los Gatos.  Find and propose ways to support working class residents and 
employees in Los Gatos to improve the community’s racial, ethnic, and 
socioeconomic diversity. 
 

Page 72



Sponsor community events and programs that bring the community together and  
foster inclusion and equity, and embrace the diversity of the greater community. 

Page 73



Small U.S. towns that have a Diversity Commission
https://datausa.io All data for 2018

Los Gatos, CAClayton, MO
Charlottesvill
e, VA Lynnwood, WABristol County, RI

Population 30,922 16,448 47,042 37,671 48,900
Median 
Income 140,395 $97,145 $58,933 59,416 $75,578
Poverty rate 4.49% 7.20% 24.60% 14% 7.60%
Median 
property value $1,590,000 $630,400 283,800 360,300 $345,200
median age 45.9 $31 31.3 40 44.2

% white 71.7 74.9 65.7 53 92.3
Asian 14.3 12.6 7.13 18 2.04
Black 1.49 6.92 18.6 7 1.27
Hispanic 8.37 2.93 5.38 15 2.91
Other 4.14 2.65 3.19 1.49

Selected Bay area cities that have Equity Commissions or Task Forces
Mountain 
View, Ca Palo Alto Lafeyette, Ca Livermore, Ca

Year started 2020 2007 2020? 2020?
Population 80,933 67,019 26,060 89,027
Median 
Income 128,252 157,120 157,453 116,942
Poverty rate 7.01 5.09 4.06 4.59
Median 
property value 1,210,000 2,000,000 1,300,000 692,000
median age 35 42 45 40

% white 44.6 55.2 75 62.6
Asian 31.3 32.5 12 10.9
Black 1.8 1.54 0.85 1.7
Hispanic 17.8 5.72 7.81 20.2
Other 6.37 5.04 4.34 6.3

Page 74

https://datausa.io/


From: Lee Fagot  
Sent: Tuesday, January 26, 2021 10:41 AM 
To: Laurel Prevetti <LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov>; Arn Andrews <aandrews@losgatosca.gov>; Marico 
Sayoc <MSayoc@losgatosca.gov>; Rob Rennie <RRennie@losgatosca.gov>; Mary Badame 
<MBadame@losgatosca.gov>; Matthew Hudes <MHudes@losgatosca.gov>; Maria Ristow 
<MRistow@losgatosca.gov> 
Cc: Robert Schultz <RSchultz@losgatosca.gov> 
Subject: Jan 26 Council meeting, Item 7. Commercial Cannabis Operations and Facilities Ordinance 
 
Dear Council and Town Staff: 
Regarding Item 7 as submitted by Town Attorney, as shown on Page 64 of the agenda -  
If we are proposing to ignore Federal Laws in order to gain possible new tax revenue, with allowing sale 
of Cannabis in LG, why stop there? 
Should we also pursue other new revenue for the Town by amending other laws/codes or just stop 
enforcement? 
Such as: 
              Allow Vaping products sales, especially to minors 
              Reduce age for purchasing alcohol to 18, or even 16 in Town 
              Allow sale of flavored tobacco and vaping products, also to 16 year olds 
              Prostitution, male and female 
 
Also, the Town could repurpose much of the Town owned property to become such retail outlets to 
support these new revenue sources in Town. 
Remember, this document on the agenda tonight states -  "The analysis and review of these issues is 
consistent with council priority of Prudent Financial Management.”   So, good financial management is 
the priority driver in such decision making!!! 
 
Seriously, though you may hear arguments for cannabis sales, such as how selling cannabis has not 
increased crime in other certain communities, consider that  those very remote towns may not be 
communities surrounded by urbanization like LG, and with our teen population of about 5,000 +, or so, 
think of the message you are telling our citizens, and youth in particular - that we are only abiding by the 
laws we like, not all of the laws.  A major challenge in our local Schools is their battle  trying to stop kids 
from vaping, on and off campus, yet you are considering to allow cannabis sales in Town in breach of 
federal law.  With all the turmoil today, be part of the solution, not an exhibitor of the problem.  Provide 
a rational and consistent message of good governance - follow the law.  Vote NO on this proposal. 
Please take responsible actions, follow Federal Law and do not allow cannabis sales in our 
Town.  Protect our youth and their families, and your family as well.   
Vote NO on Item 7, as shown on page 64 of tonight’s Agenda. 
 
Respectfully,  
Lee Fagot 
               

 

Page 75

mailto:LPrevetti@losgatosca.gov
mailto:aandrews@losgatosca.gov
mailto:MSayoc@losgatosca.gov
mailto:RRennie@losgatosca.gov
mailto:MBadame@losgatosca.gov
mailto:MHudes@losgatosca.gov
mailto:MRistow@losgatosca.gov
mailto:RSchultz@losgatosca.gov

	Top
	1.	Strategic Priorities
	Staff Report
	Attachment 1 - 2020-2022 Strategic Priorities
	Attachment 2 - Town Department Work Plans
	Attachment 3 - 2021-2023 Strategic Priorities draft
	Attachment 4 - Community Survey Results
	Attachment 5 - FY2020-21 CIP Prioritization
	Attachment 6 - Council Member Suggestions
	Attachment 7 - Ordinance and Policy Priorities.2021
	Desk Item
	Attachment 8 - Public Comment

	Bottom

